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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To the Members of
JN BANK LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JN Bank Limited (“the Bank”)
comprising the separate financial statements of the Bank and the
consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary (“the
Group”), set out on pages 5 to 84, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at March 31, 2018, the statements of profit or loss, other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at March 31,
2018, and of the Group’s and the Bank's financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Jamaican Companies Act.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS and the Jamaican
Companies Act, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Bank’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (CONTINUED)

To the Members of
JN BANK LIMITED

Report on additional matters as required by the Jamaican Companies
Act

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been maintained, so far as
appears from our examination of those records, and the financial statements,
which are in agreement therewith, give the information required by the
Jamaican Companies Act in the manner required.

Chartered Accountant
Kingston, Jamaica

July 27,2018
R.Tarun Handa
Cynthia L. Lawrence W. Gihan C. de Mel
Rajan Trehan Nyssa A. Johnson
KPMG, a Jamaican partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms Norman O. Rainford Wilbert A. Spence
affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International ), a Swiss entity. Nigel R. Chambers Rochelle N. Stephenson
Statements of Financial Position
March 31, 2018
Notes Group_ Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 26,602,881 24,481,461 26,602,881 24,297,053
Securities purchased under resale agreements 7 922,137 6,340,142 922,137 6,340,142
Investments 8 52,017,064 46,522,447 52,017,064 46,310,393
Other assets 9 395,212 806,134 395,212 753,134
Due from related entities 10(b)(D) 1,587,054 1,140,828 1,587,054 1,103,919
Taxation recoverable 933,529 814,839 933,529 814,840
Interest in subsidiary 11 - - - 545,300
Interest in associate 12 173,866 149.005 123,012 156,841
Loans, after allowance for impairment losses 13 78,970,035 75,685,561 78,970,035 70,661,186
Assets held for sale 4 428,919 522,793 428919 522,793
Investment properties 15 180,608 160,291 180,608 160,291
Property, plant and equipment 16 3,431,067 3,880,983 3,431,067 3,434,847
Intangible assets 17 162,963 170,790 162,963 166,575
Deferred tax assets ‘18 230,250 427.046 230,250 427,046
Total assets 166,035,585 161,102,320 165,984,731 155.694,36(
LIABILITIES
Bank overdraft (unsecured) 6(c) - 12,646 - 12,646
Due to specialised financial institutions 17,398,102 15,947,521 17,398,102 15,947,521
Customer deposits 19 115,873,375 116,212,458 115,873,375 109,312,357
Due to related entitics 10(b)(ii) - - - 2,141,298
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 20 8,735,145 7,186,955 8,735,145 7,186,955
Other payables 21 1,546,444 1,280,255 1,546,444 1,186,327
Margin loan payable 22 2,506,396 - 2,506,396 -
Taxation payable 98,199 - 98,199 -
Employee benefits obligation 23(a) __ 1248296 _1,001.769 1,248,296 1,001,769
Total lizibilities 147,405,957 141.641.604 147.405.957 136.788.873
EQUITY
Share capital 24 4,511,000 4,511,000 4,511,000 4,511,000
Reserve fund 25 7,600,000 7,600,000 7,600,000 7,600,000
Contractual savings reserve 26 14,223 14,223 14,223 14,223
Other reserves 27 4,119,320 4,578,856 4,108,252 4,083,582
Retained earnings 2,385,085 2,722,136 2.345.299 2,696.682
Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Bank 18,629,628 19.426,215 18,578,774 18,905,487
Non-controlling interest - 34.501 - -
Total equity 18,629,628 19.460.716 18.578.774 18.905.487
Total liabilities and equity 166,035,585 161,102,320 165,984,731 155,694,360

The fjivancial statéments on pages 5 to 84 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on July 27, 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

) Ja.
irector L' K{Z___D irector /é WDirecLur
Dhiru Tanna Raphael Gordo:

Oliver F. Clarke

Statements of Profit or Loss
Year ended March 31, 2018

Notes Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Interest revenue:
Interest on loans 7,035,507 6,513,862 6,684,893 6,125,198
Interest on investments 2,680,909 3.094.881 2,646,132 3.005.565

9,716,416 9,608,743 9,331,025 9,130,763

Interest expense 29 (_2,207,080) (_2.167.529)  (2,095.676) (1.982.630)
Net interest revenue 7,509,336 7,441,214 7,235,349 7,148,133
Other operating income 30 2,989,751 2,712,531 2,880,627 2,641,191
Operating expenses 31 (10.029.786)  (10,167.500)  (9.717.205)  (9.841.494)
Operating profit/(loss) 469,301  ( 13,755) 398,771 ( 52,170)
Gain on disposal of investments 851,078 479,830 810,104 450,230
Share of profit/(loss) of associate 12 58282 ( 42,731) - -
Unrealised foreign exchange (loss)/gain (___53.470) 148,648 (__53.470) 148,648
Profit before taxation 1,325,191 571,992 1,155,405 546,708
Taxation 32 (__526.881) (___67.664) (_526,881) (__67.664)
Profit for the year 798,310 504,328 628,524 479,044
Attributable to:

The Bank 795,303 501,533 628,524 479,044

Non-controlling interest 3.007 2,795 - -

798,310 504,328 628,524 479,044

To be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Statements of Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended March 31, 2018

Group Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2018

Audited Results Year Ended March 31, 2018

Notes Group Bank 2018 2017
2018 2017 2018 2017 $°000 $°000
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 798,310 504,328
Profit for the year 798310 504328 628524  479.044 Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Other comprehensive income: Depreciation - property, plant and equipment and
investment properties 421,892 397,197

Items that are or may be reclassified to Amortisation of intangible assets 81,295 62,108
profit or loss: Gair} on disposal of property, plant and equipment and ’

Translation of foreign subsidiary balances - 57,777 - - Investment properties (2468 ( 5,734)

Gain on disposal of investments ( 851,076) ( 479,830)

Realised gain on investments recognised Gain from foreign exchange rate changes 19901  ( 669,655)
in statement of profit or loss (851,078) (481,046) (810,104) (450,230) Translation differences 25,992 37,218
Share of (profit)/loss of associate ( 58,282) 42,731

Increase in fair value of available-for-sale Dividend income . (1 23226) ( 265233)

investments 756,850 567,982 715876 520,732 Gain on disposal of foreclosed properties (4925 ( 21,580)

Net increase/(decrease) in provision for loan losses 158,699  ( 127,222)

Deferred tax on available-for-sale investments 18 31409 (168291) _31.409  (168.291) Interest income (9.716,416)  ( 9,608,743)
) 7 Interest expense 2,207,080 2,167,529
) _ (62.819) (23.578) (62819) (97.789) Current tax expense 268,467 263,891

Items that will never be reclassified to Deferred taxation 258414 ( 196,227)

profit or loss: L Net decrease on foreclosed properties ( 48,834) (  80,861)
Remeasurement of employee benefits obligation 23(d) ( 90,627) ( 67,608) ( 90,627) ( 67,608) Employee benefits obligation 155.907 160,723
Deferred tax on employee benefits obligation 18 30.209 22,536 30.209 22.536 (6,309,270)  ( 7,819,360)
(60418) (45.072) (60.418) (_45.072) Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (123,237) (_68.650) (123,237) (142.861) Net a(.idltlons to loans (8,651,908)  (10,690,428)
Taxation (payable)/recoverable ( 49,443) 569,268
Total comprehensive income for the year 675073 435678 505287  336.183 Other assets 398,585 (1 193,317)
. Due from related entities 100,868  ( 267,508)
Attributable to: Other payables 2,800,155 284,690
The Bank o 672,066 434,337 505,287 336,183 Net receipts from customer deposits 4,251,268 14,187,516
Non-controlling interest 3.007 1.341 = = Due to specialised financial institutions 1,513,715 1,195,305
675.073  435.678  505.287  336.183 Securities purchased under resale agreements 5,426,628 611,596
Due to related entities - ( 1,087,280)
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,558,507 6,211,003
Group Statement of Changes in Equity 1,039,105 3,001,485
Year ended March 31,2018 Dividends paid ( 832,000) )
Interest paid (2,327,473)  ( 2,059,234)
Permanent Contractual Non - Interest received 9,631,417 9,459,215
capital Reserve  savings Other Retained controlling ~ Total Income tax paid (_239.515) (__235.142)
capital fund fund reserve reserves earnings Total interest equity.
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000  $°000  $°000  $°000 K : - 2
(note 24) [note 38()] (note25) (note26) (note 27) Net cash provided by operating activities 7,271,534 10,166,324

Balances as at March 31,2016, as restated 4,511,000 7,600,000 14203 4755492 2106222 18986937 30575  19.017512

Balances as at March 31,2016 Cash flows from investing activities
As previously stated - 6,940,000 7,600,000 14223 2326492 3371860 20252575 30,575 20,283,150 g
l’:ioprr;e;ad}ust‘:neems [note 38(i)] 4511,000  (6.940,000) - - 2.429.000  (1.265,638) (_1.265,638) - (L1.265.638) In,‘ erstments . (24’940’746) ( 7’746’479)
As restated 4,511,000 7.600,000 14203 4755492 2106222 18986937 30575 19.017.512 Dividend received 23,226 265,233

Total comprehensive . o Assets held for sale ( 16,981) 21,707

prehensive income for the year: . N
Profit for the year - 501533 __501533 2795 _ 504328 Purchase of intangible assets (  77,729) ( 139,713)
0']';’,:fsﬂfif:z'}s'f;f;i;o"'e' Purchase and tranfers of property, plant and equipment
subsidiary’s balances - 59,880 - 59,880 ( 2,103) 57,777 and investment properties ( 447,489) ( 565,676)
Realised gain on investments . .
recognised in statement of Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
. p;aﬁt orloss y 1 ( 479.830) ( 479830) ( 1.216) ( 481,046) and investment properties 8,721 35,029
ferred tax on available-for-s N
e;r»risus:n?: araierorse - - ( 168,291) (168291) ( 168291) Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 164,614 209,966
Increase in fair value of available-for- : : ?
O . o617 . seoll7 1865 5670 Proceeds from disposal of investments 19.604.183 16.826.968
Remeasurement of employee benefits Net cash (USCd in)/provided by in\'esting activities (_5.682.201) 8.907.035
obligation - - ( 67,608) ( 67,608) ( 67,608)
Deferred tax on employee benefits .
e Zrbrlei;m:z;mmpm encfi . i 2536 2536 2536 Cash flows from financing activities
Total other comprehensive loss - - (L 22.124)  (__45072) (__67.196) (_1.454) (__ 68.650) Bank overdraft ‘ ( 12,646) 12,646

Total comprehensive (loss)/income - (__22.124) 456,461 434337 1341 435,678 Net assets transferred - 7,526

Movement between reserves: Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities ( 12.646) 20,172
Transfer to credit loss reserve (_162,038) 159.453 ( 2,585) 2,585

Transaction with owners Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,576,687 19,093,531
Net assets transferred [note 38(ii)] 7.526 - 7.526 - 7,526 . .. N

Balances at March 31, 2017 4,511,000 7,600,000 14223 4578856 2,722,136 19426215 34,501 19,460,716 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 24,481,461 5,437,567

Total comprehensive income for the year: Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 544,733  (___49.637)
Profit for the year - - 795303 _ 795303 3,007 _ 798310 § .

Other comprehensive income: Cash and cash equlvalents at end of the year 26,602,881 24,48 | ,461
Realised gain on investments
recognised in statement of
profit or loss ( 851,078) ( 851,078) (851,078
Deferred tax on available-for-sale
investments - 31.409 31,409 31,409 Bank Statement of Cash Flows
Increase in fair value of available-for-
sale investments 756,850 756,850 256850 Year ended March 31, 2018
Remeasurement of employee benefits
obligation - - (90,627) (90,627 ( 90,627)
Deferred tax on employee benefits M 2017
obligation - 30209 30209 - 30209 $°000 $°000
Total other comprehensive loss - (__62.819)  (__60418) (__123.237) - (_123237) Cash flows from operating activities
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (__62.819) 734,885 672,066 3,007 675073 Profit for the year 628,524 479,044
Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash

Movement between reserves: . . PP
Transfer to credit loss reserve 64133 (_T7LS6l) (___7428) __ - (___7428) provided by operating activities: ) ) )

Transactions with owners Depreciation - property, plant and equipment and investment properties 402,816 378,997
Net assets transferred (note 11) ( 460,850)  ( 168.375) ( 629,225) (37,508) (  666,733) Amortisation of intangible assets 79,218 60,765
Dividends (note 39) - (_832.000) (__832,0000 __- _ (__832.000) Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ( 2,468) ( 5,734)

- (_460.850)  (1,000.375) (_1.461225) (37.508) (_1.498.733) Gain on disposal of foreclosed properties ( 4,925) ( 21,580)

Balances as at March 31,2018 4511000 - 7600000 _ 14223 4119320 2385085 18629628 (_-_) 18629628 Gain on disposal of investments 810,104) ( 450,230)

Loss/(gain) from foreign exchange rate changes 19,901 ( 669,655)
Dividend income ( 23226) ( 265233)
X . Interest income ( 9,331,025) ( 9,130,763)

Bank Statement of Changes in Equity Interest expense 2,095,676 1,982,630
Year ended March 31, 2018 Tax expense 268,467 263,891
Deferred taxation 258,414 ( 196,227)

Net increase/(decrease) in provision for loan losses 158,699 41,568

Permanent Contractual Employee benefits Obligation 155,907 160,723
Share capital Reserve savings Other Retained Net decrease in foreclosed properties ( 48.834) ( 80.861)

capital fund fund reserve reserves earnings Total
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 ( 6,152,960) (1 7,452,665)
(note 24)  [note 38(i)]  (note 25) (note 26) (note 27) Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Net additions to loans ( 8,677,135) ( 9,489,382)

Balances as at March 31, 2016 as restated 4,511,000 - 7,600,000 14,223 4210.031  2.226,524 18.561.778 Taxation (payable)/recoverable ( 49,442) 569,268

Balances as at March 31, 2016 Other assets 345,585 ( 225,786)
As previously stated - 6,940,000 7,600,000 14223 1,781,031 3,492,162 19,827,416 Other payables 2,877,983 234,504
Prior year adjustments [note 38(i)] 4.511,000 (6.940.000) - - 2.429.000 (1.265.638) (_1.265.638) Net receipts from customers deposits 5.889,610 11,794,843
As restated 4,511,000 - 7600000 14223 4210031 2226524 18.561,778 Due to related entities (1 2,132,551) 1,054,018

Total comprehensive income for the year: Due from related entities ( 483,135) ( 365,001)
p“r"ﬁ‘ ‘t‘" the W"’: R - - - — - 479,044 479,044 Due to specialised financial institutions 1,513,715 1,195,305
Ot ;rw,mprehe."s“'e.'",“"“e' Securities purchased under resale agreements 5,426,628 611,596

ealised gain on investments L
recognised in statement of Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,558,507 6,211,003
profit or loss - - - - ( 450,230) - (450,230) 116,805 4,137,703
Increase in fair value of available- .. . 4 o
for-sale investments - - - - 520,732 - 520,732 Dividends .pald (832,000 -
Deferred tax on available-for Interest paid 2,216,069) ( 1,876,467)
-sale investments - - - ( 168,291) - ( 168,291) Interest received 9,246,026 9,028,246
Remeasurement of employee benefits Income tax paid (__239.515) (_235.142)
obligation - - - ( 67,608) ( 67,608) X i .
Deferred tax on employee benefits Net cash provided by operating activities 6.075.247 11.054.340
obligation - - - - 22,536 22,536 . . .
. Cash flows from investing activities
Total other comprehensive loss - - - - (__97.789) (__45.072) (__142.861) Investments (24,144,424) ( 8.866,172)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - - - (__97.789) 433,972 336.183 Interest in subsidiary 545,300 -

Movements between reserves: Interest in associates 33,829 ( 7,588)
Transfer to credit loss reserve - - - - 36.,186) 36,186 - Dividend received 23,226 265,233

Transaction with owners: Assets held for sale ( 16,981) 21,707
Net assets transferred [note 38(ii)] - - - 7.526 - 7.526 Purchases and transfers of intangible assets ( 75,606) ( 134.232)

Balances as at March 31,2017 4,511,000 - 7,600,000 14223 4,083,582 2,696,682 18905487 Purchase of property, plant and equipment and investment properties and transfers ~ ( 444,367) ( 516,299)

Total comprehensive income for the year: Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 164,614 209,966
Profit f;’r the year o 4 _ _ _ , 628.524 628.524 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 8,721 35,029
Other comprehensive income: Proceeds from disposal of investments 19,604.182 16.826.967

Re:'eh;:gdnig:e'g ::]nslt;‘v;::;:':f Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (_4.301.506) 7.834.611
profit or loss ( 810,104) ( 810,104) 1.773.741 18.888.951
Increase in fair value of available-
for-sale investments 715,876 715,876
Deferred tax on available-for Cash flows from financing activities
-sale investments - - - - 31,409 - 31,409 Bank overdraft ( 12 646) 12,646
Remeasurement of employee benefits ’ ’
obligation . _ _ , _ (90.627) ( 90,627) Net assets transferred - 7.526
Defered tax loyee benefits . . . e
¢ zﬁig:,?oin employee benetits 4 . . . 4 30.209 30.209 Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities ( 12.646) 20,172
Total other comprehensive loss - - - —- (62819) (__60418) (__123237) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,761,095 18,909,123
Total comprehensive income - - - (__62.819) _568.106 505.287 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ycar 24,297,053 5,437,567
Movements between reserves: Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 544,733 ( 49.637)
Transfer to credit loss reserve - - - - 87.489 (__87.489) -
Transaction with owners: Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 26,602,881 24,297,053
Dividends (note 39) - - - - (_832.000) (__832.000)
Balances as at March 31, 2018 4 00 7,600,000 14,223 4,108252 2345299 18,578.774

2)

To be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.




Audited Results Year Ended March 31, 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31,2018

The Bank

JN Bank Limited (“the Bank”) commenced business on February 1, 2017, subsequent to the granting
of a licence under the Banking Services Act, 2014, by virtue of the conversion of The Jamaica
National Building Society (“the Building Society”).

The Bank’s registered office is located at 2-4 Constant Spring Road, Kingston 10. Its principal
activities are comprised of granting home and other loans, operating savings and current accounts
and buying and selling of foreign exchange.

The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme”) by which the JN Group has been reorganised under
three distinct holding companies was sanctioned by Order of the Supreme Court on December 22,
2016. Among other things, the Scheme resulted in the conversion of The Jamaica National Building
Society to a commercial bank licensed under the Banking Services Act, 2014 on February 1, 2017.
Upon the Scheme taking effect on February 1, 2017, ownership of the Bank passed to the JN Financial
Group Limited (parent) and the ultimate holding company became The Jamaica National Group
Limited. The entities were incorporated in Jamaica under the Jamaican Companies Act.

“Group” refers to the Bank, its subsidiary and associate as follows:

Percentage  Percentage

Country of ownership  ownership Nature of
Name of company incorporation 2018 2017 business
Subsidiary:

JN Cayman Limited ~ Cayman Islands - 95.89 Mortgage lending on
residential properties and
other financial services

Associate:

IN Money Services

(Cayman) Limited Cayman Islands 20.00 20.00 Money services business
including remittances
and bill payments.

As the reorganisation was a transaction among entities under common control, the Group applied
predecessor value method of accounting. Under the predecessor method:

. The Group did not restate assets and liabilities to their fair values. Instead, the Group
incorporated the assets and liabilities at the amounts recorded in the books of the combined
companies, adjusted to achieve harmonisation of accounting policies.

. No goodwill arose.

o The consolidated financial statements incorporated the combined companies’ results as if the
companies had always been combined.

o The corresponding amounts in the consolidated financial statements for the previous year
reflected the results of the combined companies, as though the restructuring occurred at the
beginning of the prior year.

On March 29, 2018 the Bank transferred its shares in JN Cayman Limited to its parent company JN
Financial Group Limited for $547,094,000. This consideration was in the form of a debenture issued
by N Financial Group Limited [see note 10(b)(1)].

Licence and regulations

The Bank is licensed, and the financial statements are delivered, under the Banking Services Act, 2014
and the Banking Services Regulations, 2015 which became effective on September 30, 2015. The
licence which was held by the Building Society was relinquished on January 31, 2017 in exchange for
the banking licence, with an effective date of February 1, 2017 (see note 1).

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and their interpretations as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), and comply with the provisions of the Jamaican Companies Act.

Details of the Bank’s accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included in
notes 40 and 41.

(b) Basis of preparation:

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

. financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;
. available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value;
. the liability for defined-benefit obligations is recognised as the present value of the

defined-benefit obligations.
(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Jamaica dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Bank, and are expressed in thousands of dollars unless otherwise stated.

(d)  Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make estimates, assumptions and judgement that affect the reported amounts of, and disclosures
relating to, assets, liabilities, contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the reporting date
and the income and expenses for the year then ended. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual amounts could differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements are described in note 4.

(e) Comparative information:

Wherever necessary, the comparative figures are reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements, or which have a
risk of material adjustment in the next year, are as follows:

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty:
(i)  Post-retirement benefits:

The amounts recognised in the statements of financial position, profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for certain post-retirement benefits are determined actuarially
using several assumptions. The primary assumptions used in determining the amounts
recognised include the discount rate used to determine the present value of estimated
future cash flows required to settle the post-retirement obligations and the expected rate
of increase in medical costs for post-retirement medical benefits.

The discount rate is determined based on the estimate of yield on long-term government
securities that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligation. In
the absence of such instruments in Jamaica, it has been necessary to estimate the rate by
extrapolating from the longest-tenor security on the market. The estimate of expected rate
of increase in medical costs is determined based on inflationary factors. Any changes in
these assumptions will impact the amounts recorded in the financial statements for these
obligations.

4.

Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued):
(ii)  Allowance for impairment losses:

In determining amounts recorded for impairment of loans and receivables in the financial
statements, management makes judgements regarding indicators of impairment, that is,
whether there are indicators that suggest there may be a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from loans, for example, repayment default and adverse
economic conditions. Management also makes estimates of the likely estimated future
cash flows from impaired loans, as well as the timing of such cash flows. Historical loss
experience is applied where indicators of impairment are not observable on individual
significant loans and loan portfolios with similar characteristics, such as credit risks.

(iii) Valuation of financial instruments:

The Group’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in accounting
policy [see note 41(d)(vii)].

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses market observation
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

. Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets
or liabilities.

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on
quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cashflow models,
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other
valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk free
and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other risk premia used in estimating
discount rates.

Considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to arrive at estimates of
fair values for levels 2 and 3. Consequently, the estimates arrived at may be significantly
different from the actual price of the instrument in an arm’s length transaction.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

(iv) Residual value and expected useful life of property, plant and equipment:

The residual value and expected useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is
accounted for. The useful life on an asset is defined in terms of the assets expected utility
to the Group.

(b)  Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies:
(i)  Held-to-maturity investments:

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
may be classified as held-to-maturity, if an entity has the positive intent and ability to
hold these instruments to maturity. In classifying financial assets as held-to-maturity, the
Group has determined that it has both the positive intention and ability to hold the assets
until maturity date.

(ii) Impairment of investment in equity securities:

Investments in equity securities are evaluated for impairment on the basis described in
accounting policy [41(d)(vi)].

For an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its cost is objective evidence of impairment. In this respect, the Group regards a
decline in fair value in excess of 20 percent to be “significant” and a decline in a quoted
market price that persists for nine months or longer to be “prolonged”.

(iii) Deferred tax assets:

The recognition of a deferred tax asset requires management to make assumptions
concerning future taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be recovered.

It is reasonably probable, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial
year that are different from these assumptions could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amount reflected in the financial statements.

Responsibilities of the appointed actuaries and external auditors

The actuaries have been appointed by management pursuant to the requirements of IAS 19. With
respect to preparation of financial statements, the actuaries are required to carry out an actuarial
valuation of management’s estimate of the Group’s health and Group life liabilities and report thereon
to the members.

The valuation is made in accordance with accepted actuarial practice, as well as any other matter
specified in any directive made by regulatory authorities. The actuaries, in their verification of the
management information provided by the Group and used in the valuation, also make use of the work
of the external auditors. The actuary’s reports outline the scope of their work and opinion. An actuarial
valuation is prepared annually.

The external auditors have been appointed by the shareholders to conduct an independent and objective
audit of the financial statements of the Group and the Bank in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing, and report thereon to the shareholders. In carrying out their audit, the auditors also make
use of the work of the actuaries and their report on the Group’s post-employment and other obligations.
The auditors’ report outlines the scope of their audit and their opinion.

Cash and cash equivalents
Group Bank

2018 2017 2018 2017

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Cash reserve with Bank of Jamaica [see (a)] 14,875,474 14,264,439 14,875,474 14,264,439
Short-term bank deposits - 478,306 - -
Cash and cash equivalents [see (b)] 11,727,407 9,738,716 11,727,407 10,032,614

26,602,881 24,481,461 26,602,881 24,297,053

(a)  Statutory reserves, required by regulation to be held at Bank of Jamaica, comprise cash reserves
not available for use by the Bank and are determined by the percentage of average prescribed
liabilities stipulated by Bank of Jamaica.

As aBank, at March 31, 2018, the cash reserve requirement is twelve percent (12%) for Jamaica
dollars and fourteen percent (14%) for foreign currency of the average prescribed liabilities,
respectively. At March 31, 2018, the Bank met the cash reserve requirements.

(b)  The Bank has the following securities pledged:

(i)  $321,500,000 (2017: $275,458,000) to facilitate settlement of Multilink transactions;

(ii)  $Nil (2017: $50,500,000) with a commercial bank to cover uncleared funds up to a limit
of $Nil (2017: $500,000,000);

(iii)  $2,896,000 (2017: $2,844,000) with a commercial bank to cover a third party guarantee;
(iv)  $62,659,900 (2017: $12,822,000) for bid collateral; and
(v)  $9,327,154,000 (2017: $7,533,450,000) for repurchase agreements collateral.

(c) The Bank has a $145,000,000 (2017: $200,000,000) unsecured overdraft facility with a
commercial bank. The amount drawn under the overdraft facility as at March 31, 2018 is $Nil
(2017: $12,646,000).

(d) Cash and cash equivalents include cash collected on behalf of related entities amounting to
$218,173,000 (2017: $213,174,000) (see note 21).
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Securities purchased under resale agreements

Group and Bank

2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Principal 921,919 6,331,301
Interest receivable 218 8,841

922,137 6,340,142

At March 31, 2018, securities obtained and held under resale agreements had a fair value of
$1,137,263,000 (2017: $6,381,465,000).

Securities purchased under resale agreements are due from the reporting date, excluding interest
receivable, as follows:

Group and Bank

2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Within 3 months 921,919 3,895,182
3 months to 1 year - 2,436,119

921,919 6,331,301

Investments
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Loans and receivables
Corporate bonds 757,247 773,649 757,247 773,649
Certificates of deposit 13,491,529 13,403,615 13,491,529 13,403,615
Promissory note 30,000 - 30,000 -
14,278,776 14,177,264 14,278,776 14,177,264

Available-for-sale

Corporate bonds 12,030,150 5,389,835 12,030,150 5,194,481

Government of Jamaica securities 22,925,637 25,882,520 22,925,637 25,882,520

Treasury bills 2,004,019 - 2,004,019 -
Quoted equities 153,474 198,580 153,474 198,580
Unquoted equities [see (i) below] 29.353 80 29,353 80
37,142,633 31,471,015 37,142,633 31,275,661

At fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange forward contracts - 30,452 - 30,452
Government of Jamaica securities - 106,532 - 106,532
- 136,984 - 136,984
Sub-total 51,421,409 45,785,263 51,421,409 45,589,909
Interest receivable 595,655 737,184 595,655 720,484
52,017,064 46,522,447 52,017,064 46,310,393

(1)  This is stated after deducting provision for impairment of $1,964,000 (2017: $1,964,000).
During the year, the Bank purchased $29,273,000 of shares in Automated Payments Limited,
an automated clearing house operator.

(i1) Investments are due from the reporting date, excluding interest receivable, as follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
No specific maturity 182,827 198,660 182,827 198,660
Within 3 months 9,647,697 4,805,349 9,647,697 4,805,349
3 months to 1 year 10,049,849 3,646,522 10,049,849 3,646,522
1 year to 5 years 12,144,961 22,571,272 12,144,961 22,571,272
5 years and over 19,396,075 14,563,460 19,396,075 14,368,106
51,421,409 45,785,263 51,421,409 45,589,909
Other assets
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Other receivables 353,397 780,994 353,397 727,994
Inventories 41,815 25,140 41,815 25,140
395,212 806,134 395,212 753,134

Related party balances and transactions
(a) Identity of related parties:
The Bank has a related party relationship with its subsidiary, parent, ultimate parent, fellow

subsidiaries, associate, pension scheme, directors, companies owned by directors, and other key
management personnel and JN Foundation.

(b) Balances with related entities:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(i) Due from related entities
Due from ultimate parent 12,794 361,959 12,794 361,959
Due from parent (1) 547,094 24,185 547,094 24,185
Due from other related entities 1,027,166 754,684 1,027,166 717,775

1,587,054 1,140,828 1,587,054 1,103,919

(1) This includes an unsecured debenture note issued by the parent as consideration for
the transfer of the Bank shares held in JN Cayman Limited (see note 1)
$547,094,000. It bears interest at a fixed rate of 6% per annum and is payable
quarterly. The note becomes due at March 31, 2021.

Group and Bank

2018 2017
$°000 $°000

(ii) Due to related entities
Due to related entities - 2,141,298
The balances due from/to related entities are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms, except as indicated in (1) above.
(c)  The statement of financial position includes balances arising in the ordinary course of business,
with related parties as follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Cash and cash equivalents

Other related entities 66,900 - 66,900 -
Securities purchased under resale agreements

Other related entities 304,360 77,083 304,360 77,083
Other assets

Other related entities 60,155 159,032 60,155 159,032
Loans

Directors 40,722 71,910 40,722 36,761

Other key management personnel 129,315 124,240 129,315 124,240
Customer deposits

Directors 69,814 950,210 69,814 30,049

Subsidiary - - - 850,998

Other key management personnel 57,346 89,586 57,346 89,586

Ultimate parent company 191,703 200,396 191,703 200,396

Parent company 152,109 210,544 152,109 210,544

Other related entities 2,488,159 1,283,432 2,488,159 927,464
Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other related entities - 4,053,563 - 4,053,563
Other payables

Other related entities 241,065 35,267 241,065 35,267

10.

11.
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Related party balances and transactions (continued)

(d)  The profit before taxation includes income earned from, and expenses incurred in, transactions
with related parties in the ordinary course of business as follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$’000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Related entities:
Dividends - (220,307) - (220,307)
Interest income ( 21,397) ( 12,587) (21,323)  ( 12,587)
Management fees ( 40,156) (459,261) (971,596)  (459,261)
Other income (1,115,769) (134,745) (171,176)  (123,522)
Maintenance expenses 143,564 89,197 26,517 89,197
Management fees 19,692 - 18,600 56,689
Computer related expenses 162,173 46,580 209,404 46,580
Commission 282,566 180,054 249,909 180,054
Other expenses 116,586 90,470 337,460 90,470
Insurance 96,756 99,522 100,567 99,522
Interest expense - 1,320 56,984 -
Marketing 139,293 - 135,165 -
Other related parties:

Interest expense - 35,298 - -
Contribution to pension scheme 110,530 111,493 110,530 111,493
Contribution to Foundations 50,400 38,083 50,400 38,083

(e) Compensation paid to key management personnel (directors and senior executives) is as follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Short-term benefits 134,138 276,132 117,479 275912
Post-employment benefits 4,172 7.115 3.405 6,992

138,310 283,247 120,884 282,904

Interest in subsidiary
Bank
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Shares, at cost or written down value (see note 1) - 545,300

On March 29, 2018, the Bank transferred its investment in JN Cayman Limited to its parent JN
Financial Group Limited.

The net assets transferred are as follows:

$°000

Assets:

Investment 187,133

Cash and cash equivalents 862,217

Trade and other receivables 4,999,148

Property, plant and equipment 422,826

Intangible asset 4.261

6,475,585

Liabilites:

Long-term liabilities (5.261,758)

Net assets transferred 1,213,827

Consideration [note 10(b)(1)] (_547.094)

Excess of net assets transferred over consideration 666,733

Interest in associate

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 ’000 $°000 $°000
Shares, net (see note 1) 173,866 14 S 123,012 156,841

Interest in associate held by the Bank represents a 20% sharcholding in JN Money Services (Cayman)
Limited.
JN Money Services

(Cayman) Limited

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Percentage ownership interest 20% 20%
Non-current assets 393,145 394,433
Current assets 826,892 663,931
Current liabilities (350,705) (316.781)
Net assets (100%) 869,332 741,583
Group’s share of net assets (20%) 173,866 148,317
Translation adjustments - 688
Carrying amount of interest in associate 173,866 149,005
Revenue 831,488 783,956
Expenses (540.077) (994.172)
Profit/(loss)and total

comprehensive income/(loss) (100%) 291411 (210,216)

Profit/(loss)and total
comprehensive income/(loss) (20%) 58,282 ( 42,043)

Translation adjustments (___688)
Group’s share of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income 58,282 (_42,731)
Loans, after allowance for impairment losses
Group Bank

2018 2017 2018 2017

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Mortgage loans - principal 65,816,147 65,516,399 65,816,147 60,502,633
Term loans 1,484,343 1,766,340 1,484,343 1,755,731

11,248,387 8,030,117 11,248,387 8,030,117
78,548,877 75,312,856 78,548,877 70,288,481
Accrued interest 421,158 372.705 421.158 372,705
78,970,035 75,685,561 78,970,035 70,661,186

Other loans

The Bank’s mortgage loan agreements include the right to call mortgages at any time with six months’
notice, except for new loans, which cannot be called until six months after the issue date.

Loans, less allowance for losses, are due from the reporting date, excluding interest receivable, as
follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Within 3 months 1,299,323 478,972 1,299,323 478,972
3 months to 1 year 467,331 1,448,107 467,331 1,442,584

10,256,692 10,830,733
66,525,531 62,555,044

78,548,877 75.,312.856

10,256,692 10,694,450
66,525,531 57,672,475

78,548,877 70,288,481

1 year to 5 years
5 years and over

The Bank’s loan portfolio, less allowance for losses, is concentrated as follows:

Number of accounts Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Professional and other services 616 333 1,519,326 603,244
Individuals 39,650 29,231 69,856,896 63,690,957

Corporations 660 334 7.593.813 6.366.985
40,926 29.898 78.970.035 70,661,186

Loans and advances on which interest is no longer accrued [see note 41(r)] amounted to
$7,816,915,000 (2017: $7,732,764,000) for the Group and $7,816,915,000 (2017: $6,705,390,000) for
the Bank. This represents 9.82% (2017: 10.07%) of the gross loan portfolio for the Group and 9.82%
(2017: 9.38%) for the Bank. These loans are included in the financial statements, net of allowance for
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 16. Property, plant and equipment
March 31, 2018
Group
Freehold Leaschold  Computers
13. Loans, after allowances for impairment losses (continued) landand  land and and office Motor Work-in-
buildings  buildings equipment vehicles progress Total
Impairment losses on loans are as follows: $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
At cost:
Group Bank March 31, 2016 2,258,590 212,173 2,518,208 582,815 892,376 6,464,162
2018 2017 2018 2017 Additions 38,946 - 192,418 154,364 179,948 565,676
$7000 $°000 $000 $°000 Transters 831,602 26,739 35,994 - (894,335) -
Transtfer to investment
At beginning of the year 1,138,878 1,283,778 817,248 775,680 properties (note 15) ( 16,002) - - - - ( 16,002)
Increase in allowance made Disposals - - ( 17.517)  ( 33,120) - ( 50,637)
during the year 158,739 34,277 158,450 41,568 Translation adjustments 22,973 1.249 4,101 465 - 28.788
Written back during the year (_321.919) (_179.177) - - March 31, 2017 3,136,109 240,161 2,733,204 704,524 177,989 6,991,987
. Additions 2,941 1,073 269,465 36,189 137,821 447,489
At end of the year [note 34(b)] 975,698 1,138,878 975,698 817,248 Transfers 214122 31764 . X (245.886) A
. . . . . . Transfer to investment
Allowance for loan losses made in accordance with the requirements of IFRS is as follows: properties (note 15) ( 42505) ) ) ) ) ( 42.505)
. Disposals - - ( 2.143)  ( 18,320) - ( 20463)
50T Group 0T 50T Bank 0T Translation adjustments ( 8788) ( 442) ( 675) ( 291) (  693) ( 10,889)
" " > - Transfer of subsidiary ( 505,680) ( 25,372) ( 88,784) ( 16,746) - ( 636,582)
$7000 $°000 $7000 $°000 Writen-off - - - - (L23.096)  (__23.096)
Specific provision 713,188 870,727 713,188 549,097 March 31, 2018 2.796.199 247,184  2.911,067 705,356 46,135 6.705.941
General provision 262,510 268,151 262,510 268,151 L
Depreciation:
975,698 1,138,878 975,698 817,248 March 31, 2016 419,065 160,766 1,800,945 332,775 - 2,713,551
Provisions made in accordance with Bank of Jamaica and other provisioning requirements are as $harg: ﬁil the‘ye'ar 68,108 21419 192,133 107,179 . 388,839
f ”()WS' ranster rom investment
ollows: . properties (note 15) 24,609 - - - - 24,609
Group Bank Translation adjustments 3,854 1,249 3,320 394 - 8.817
2018 2017 2018 2017 Eliminated on disposals - - (__2.834) (_21.978) - (__24812)
$°000 §°000 $7000 $7000 March 31, 2017 515,636 183,434 1,993,564 418,370 - 3,111,004
Specitic provision 1,428,126 1,990,874 1,428,126 1,474,428 Charg? for {he year 87,998 38,208 194,083 100,173 - 420,462
General provision 936.704 688,199 936.704 644.463 Transfer to investment
properties (note 15) ( 20,758) - - - - (  20,758)
2,364,830 2.679.073 2.364.830 2.118.891 Translation adjustments ( 1,709) (  442) (  3232) 1,852 - ( 3,531)
. Eliminated on disposals - - ( 1,980) ( 16,567) - (  18,547)
The total provision is broken down as follows: Transfer of subsidiary (_101,517) (25371) (__72.763) (_14,105) - (_213,756)
Group Bank March 31, 2018 479,650 195,829 2,109,672 489.723 - 3.274.874
2018 2017 2018 2017 Net book values:
$7000 $°000 $:000 $°000 March 31,2018 2316549 51355  _801395 215633 46135  3.431,067
Provision as per IFRS [note 34(b)] 975,698 1,138,878 975,698 817,248 March 31, 2017 2,620,473 56,727  _ 739,640 286,154 177,989 3.880,983
Additional provision based on Bank March 31,2016 1,839,525  _51,407  _717263 250,040 892,376 3,750,611
of Jamaica and other provisioning
requirements [note 27(c)] 1,389,132 1,540,195 1,389,132 1,301,643
Bank
2,364,830 2,679,073 2,364.830 2,118,891 Frechold  Leasehold _Computers
Included i . | for the G 4 Bank bal due £ di d X land and land and  and office Motor Work-in-
ncluded in mortgage loans for the Group and Bank are balances due from directors and companies buildings  buildings equipment  vehicles  progress Total
controlled by directors amounting to $40,631,000 (2017: $36,761,000) and interest due on these loans $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $7000
of $98,000 (2017: SNil). At cost:
March 31, 2016 1,806,775 187,608 2,437,574 573,647 892,376 5,897,980
Additions - - 189,390 146,960 179,949 516,299
14.  Assets held for sale Disposals - - ( 17,517)  ( 33,120) - ( 50,637)
Transfer to investment
Group and Bank properties (note 15) ( 16,002) - - - - ( 16,002)
2018 2017 Transfers 831,602 26,739 35.994 - (894.335) -
$°000 $°000 March 31, 2017 2,622,375 214,347 2,645,441 687,487 177,990 6,347,640
. Additions 2,207 1,073 267,769 36,189 137,129 444,367
Forec_loseq properties 903,766 948,806 Disposals i} ’ ( 2143) (18320 ’ ( 20.463)
Less impairment losses (see note below) (474.847) (426,013) Transfers 214,122 31,764 _ B (245,886) _
428.919 522.793 Transfer to investment
I = properties (note 15) ( 42,505) - - - - ( 42,505)
Movement on impairment losses is as follows: Writen-off - = - - (23098 (23.099)
Group and Bank March 31, 2018 2.796.199  247.184 2911067 705356 46,135 6.705.941
2018 2017
$°000 $°000 Depreciation:
o March 31,2016 344,773 136201 1,736,097 325285 - 2,542,356
At beginning of year 426,013 506,874 Charge for the year 55,830 21,419 188,408 104,983 - 370,640
Increase/(decrease) in allowance 48.834 (_80.861) Transfer from investment
properties (note 15) 24,609 - - - - 24,609
Atend of year 474.847 426,013 Eliminated on disposals ) - (__2.834) (21978) - (__243812)
The Bank acquired real properties through foreclosure on collateral held as securities against loans. March 31, 2017 425,212 157,620 1,921,671 408,290 - 2,912,793
Foreclosed properties should be disposed of within 3 years of acquisition, in accordance with Section Charge for the year 75,196 38,208 189,981 98,001 - 401,386
53(1) of the Banking Services Act, 2014 [see note 41(i)]. Eliminated on disposals - - ( 1,980) ( 16,567) - ( 18,547)
Transfer to investment
15. Investment properties properties (note 15) (__20.758) - - - - (__20.758)
Group and Bank March 31,2018 479.650 195828 2109672 489,724 - 3.274.874
$°000
At cost: Net book values:
March 31, 2016 _ 181,011 March 31,2018 2,316,549 51.356 801,395 215,632 46,135 3.431,067
Transfers from property, plant and equipment (note 16) 16,002 March 31, 2017 2,197,163 56,727 723,770 279,197 177,090 3,434,847
Disposals (__7.104)
March 31, 2017 189,909 March 31, 2016 1,462,002 51,407 701,477 248,362 892,376 3.355.624
Transfers from property, plant and equiptment (note 16) 42,505
March 31, 2018 230414 Inclu‘ded in frechold land and buildings is the cost of land at $115,264,000 (2017: $115,264,000) for
= the Group and the Bank.
Depreciation:
March 31, 2016 49,504
Charge for the year 8,357 17.  Intangible assets
. Group Bank
Trgn§fers to property, plant and equiptment (note 16) ( 24,609) Software Software
Eliminated on disposals (__3.634) $°000 $°000
March 31, 2017 29,618 At cost:
Transfers from property, plant and equiptment (note 16) 20,7’5‘8 March 31, 2016 653,852 641,039
Charge for the year —1.430 Additions 139,713 134,232
March 31, 2018 _51.806 Translation adjustment 587 -
Carrying values: March 31, 2017 794,152 775,271
March 31, 2018 180,608 Additions 77,729 75,606
March 31, 2017 160.291 Transfer of subsidiary (_20,681) -
9 e =
Amortisation:
March 31, 2016 560,567 547,931
Group and Bank Charge for the year 62,108 60,765
2018 2017 Translation adjustment 687 -
$°000 $°000 March 31, 2017 623,362 608,696
Charge for the year 81,295 79,218
Fair value of investment properties 535,912 280,912 Transfer of subsidiary (_16.,420) -
Income earned from the properties 38,121 6,867 ”
Expenses incurred by the properties 33,110 6,165 March 31, 2018 688,237 687914
Measurement of fair value: Net book values:
March 31, 2018 162,963 162,963
The fair value of investment properties is categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The March 31. 2017 170,790 166.5
following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value as well as the areh 2%, - 166,57
significant unobservable inputs used. March 31, 2016 _93.285 _93,108
. . 18. Deferred tax assets
Significant unobservable 'Inter relat10n§h1p between key -
Valuation technique inputs inputs and fair measurement Group and Bank
Assets Liabilities Net
Income approach: The e Expected market rental | The estimated fair value would 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
valuation model examines growth yields increase/(decrease) if: $°000 $°000  $°000 $7000 $°000  $°000
the price an investor would e Expected market rental )
be prepared to pay for the e Rental rates growth were higher/(lower); Property, plant and equipment 151,846 135,379 - - 151,846 135,379
right to receive a certain Employee benefits obligation 416,099 333,923 - - 416,099 333,923
income stream. e The occupancy rates were Other payables 29,715 48,759 - - 29,715 48,759
The model considers the higher/(lower) Contractual savings reserve - - 4267) ( 4267) ( 4.267) ( 4267
present value of net cash . Available-for-sale investments - - (136,882) (168,291) (136,882) (168,291)
flows to be generated from ® Rent-free periods were Tax losses - 270,623 - - - 270,623
the property, taking into shorter/(longer); or Impairment losses on loans - - ( 65,419) - ( 65,419) -
account  expected  rental e Yields were lower/(higher) Unrealised foreign exchange gains - - (160,842) (189,080) (160.842) (189,080)
growth rate, and current
rental rates. The estimated Net deferred tax assets 597,660 788,684 (367,410) (361,638) 230,250 427,046
net cash flows are discounted
using current yields. Among
other factors, the yield
estimation  considers  the
quality of a building and its
location, tenants’  credit
quality and lease terms.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Deferred tax assets (continued)

Group and Bank

2018
Recognised
in other
Balances at Recognised  comprehensive  Balances at
April 1,2017 in profit income March 31, 2018
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Property, plant and equipment 135,379 16,467 - 151,846
Employee benefits obligation 333,923 51,967 30,209 416,099
Other payables 48,759 (1 19,044) - 29,715
Contractual savings reserve ( 4,2607) - - ( 4,267)
Available-for-sale investments (168,291) - 31,409 (136,882)
Tax losses 270,623 (270,623) - -
Impairment losses on loans - (1 65,419) - ( 65,419)
Unrealised foreign exchange gains (189,080) 28,238 - (160,842)
427.046 (258.414) 61,618 230.250
2017
Recognised
in other
Balances at Recognised comprehensive ~ Balances at
April 1,2016 in profit income March 31, 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Property, plant and equipment 243,328 (107,949) - 135,379
Employee benefits obligation 232,031 79,356 22,536 333,923
Other payables 11,160 37,599 - 48,759
Contractual savings reserve ( 4,267) - - ( 4,267)
Available-for-sale investments - - (168,291) (168,291)
Tax losses - 270,623 - 270,623
Unrealised foreign exchange gains (105.678) (_83.402) - (189,080)
376,574 196,227 (145,755) 427,046
Movement in temporary differences during the year:
Group and Bank
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Net deferred tax assets at beginning of year 427,046 376,574
Recognised in other comprehensive income:
Available-for-sale investments 31,409 (168,291)
Employee benefits obligation 30,209 22,536
Recognised in statements of profit or loss
[note 32(a)(ii)] (258.414) 196,227
Net deferred tax assets at end of year 230,250 427,046
Customer deposits
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Deposits 115,636,428 115,853,090 115,636,428 109,028,468
Accrued interest 236,947 359,368 236,947 283,889

115,873,375 116,212,458 115,873,375 109,312,357

Customer deposits are due from the reporting date as follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Within 3 months 102,643,058 104,317,798 102,643,058 99,989,592
From 3 months to 1 year 11,909,423 11,601,114 11,909,423 9,034,230
Over 1 year 1,320,894 293,546 1,320,894 288,535

115,873,375 116,212,458 115,873,375 109,312,357

The Bank’s customer deposits portfolio is concentrated as follows:

Number of accounts Value

2018 2017 2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Public authorities 802 707 509,219 1,107,505
Financial institutions 178 154 2,797,397 2,665,230
Commercial and business 5,747 6,847 10,614,762 10,370,387
Individuals 824,457 915,934 101,951,997 95.169.235
831,184 923,642 115,873,375 109,312,357

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Group and Bank

2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Principal 8,699,510 7,141,003
Interest payable 35,635 45,952
8,735,145 7.186,955

Securities sold under repurchase agreements are due from the reporting date, excluding interest
receivable, as follows:

Group and Bank

2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Within 3 months 7,348,870 4,745,787
From 3 months to 1 year 1,350,640 2,395.216
8,699,510 7,141,003

At March 31, 2018, securities obtained under resale agreements and certain investments have been
pledged by the Group and Bank as collateral for repurchase agreements. These financial instruments
have a carrying value of $9,809,127,000 (2017: $7,895,074,000).

Other pavables

Group Bank

2018 2017 2018 2017

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Staff related accrual 253,924 266,864 253,924 258,668
Insurance payable 153,310 69,446 153,310 18,380
Trade payables 470,836 339,911 470,836 339911
Other payables 356,060 390,860 356,060 356,194
Customers’ deposits [see (i) below] 312,314 213,174 312,314 213,174
1,546,444 1,280,255 1,546,444 1,186,327

(i)  Customers’ deposits include amounts collected from customers on behalf of related entities
amounting to $218,173,000 (2017: $213,174,000) [see note 6(d)].

Margin loan payable

Margin loan payable represents short-term debt facility provided by brokerage firm to the Bank to
acquire securities on its own account. The facility is collateralised by the securities held with a
brokerage firm and bears interest at 2.3% per annum.

Employee benefits obligation

The Bank provides post-retirement pension benefits through a defined-contribution scheme which
replaced a prior defined-benefit pension scheme for its employees. The pensioners in the defined-
benefit scheme were transferred to a defined-contribution scheme, with the guarantee of their pension
payments, and active members started to contribute on a defined-contribution basis. The scheme is
funded by contributions from the Bank and employees in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Under the defined-contribution schemes, retirement benefits are based on the Bank’s and employees’
accumulated contributions, plus interest and, therefore, the Bank has no further liability to fund
pension benefits. During a prior period, the trustees of the scheme purchased annuities for the
transferring pensioners in the scheme, thereby, removing the liabilities of the guarantee of the pension
payments from the scheme.

The subsidiary participates in a defined-contribution pension scheme (Cayman National Pension Plan)
in its respective jurisdiction.

The total contributions made for the year are included in employee costs (note 33).

The Bank provides post-retirement health insurance benefits to retirees who have met certain
minimum service requirements.

23.

24.
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26.

27.
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Employee benefits obligation (continued)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position for employee benefits in respect of the
group life and health insurance plans are as follows:

(a) Employee benefits obligation recognised in the statement of financial position:

Group and Bank
2018 2017

$°000 $°000

Present value of unfunded obligations 1,248,296 1,001,769

(b)  Movement in the present value of unfunded obligations:

Group and Bank
2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Present value of unfunded obligations
and supplementary benefit at

beginning of year 1,001,769 773,438

Benefits paid ( 6,147) ( 8,667)
Service costs 90,897 97,746
Interest cost 71,157 71,644
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from:
Experience adjustments 1,712 ( 4,545)
Demographic assumption 61,002 ( 25,212)
Financial assumptions 27,906 97.365

Balances at end of year 1,248,296 1,001,769

(c)  Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss:

Group and Bank

2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Current service costs 48,162 51,573
Past service cost 42,735 46,173
Interest cost on obligation 71,157 71,644
162,054 169,390

(d) Items recognised in other comprehensive income:

Group and Bank

2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Remeasurement loss on obligation 90,627 67,608

(e)  Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

2018 2017

% %
Discount rate at March 31 7.5 9.5
Health cost inflation rate 6.0 8.0
Salary growth rate 5.5 6.5

(f)  Sensitivity analysis:
Sensitivity analysis on projected benefit obligation:

The calculation of the projected benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions used. The
table below summarizes how the projected benefit obligation measured at the end of the
reporting period would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a change in the respective
assumptions by one percentage point. In preparing the analyses for each assumption, all others
were held constant. The economic assumptions are somewhat linked as they are all related to
inflation. Hence, for example, a 1% reduction in the long-term discount rate, would cause some
reduction in the medical trend rate.

2018 2017
Increase  Decrease Increase Decrease
1% 1% 1% 1%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Discount rate (254,966) 349,746 (197,807) 269,201
Health inflation rate 316,207  (234,478) 254,297 (189,461)
Salary increase rate 3,178  (__2.805) 1,453 (__1.283)

(g) At March 31, 2018, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 24.9
years (2017: 24.5 years).

(h)  As mortality continues to improve, estimates of life expectancy are expected to increase. An
increase of one year in life expectancy will increase the employee benefits obligation by
approximately $43,587,000 (2017: $36,000,000) while a decrease of one year in life expectancy
will result in a decrease in the employee benefits obligation by approximately $7,781,000 (2017:
$5,400,000).

Share capital

Issued and fully paid:
Number of units (‘000) Carrying value (‘000)
2018 2017 2018 2017

Ordinary stock units 4,511,000 4,511,000

4,511,000 4,511,000

The number of shares which the Bank is authorised to issue is unlimited.
Reserve fund

In accordance with the Banking Services Act, 2014 and regulations under which it operates, the Bank
is required to make transfers of a minimum of 15% of net profits, until the amount in the fund is equal
to 50% of the paid-up capital of the Bank and thereatter, 10% of the net profits until the reserve fund
is equal to its paid-up capital.

Contractual savings reserve

Under the previously operated scheme, the members, after meeting certain criteria, including saving a
contracted sum at a fixed rate of 3% per annum, became eligible to apply for a mortgage loan at a
fixed rate of 5% per annum. The reserve was established in anticipation of the shortfall in interest
income in future years, from the provision of this facility. Management constantly monitors the
adequacy of the reserve and makes appropriate adjustments, as necessary.

Other reserves

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Other reserve 16,356 16,357 16,356 16,356
Exchange equalisation reserve [see (a)] 11,068 258,614 - -
Retained earnings reserve [see note 28] 2,429,000 2,429,000 2,429,000 2,429,000
Investment revaluation reserve [see (b)] 273,764 334,690 273,764 336,583

1,389,132 1,540,195 1.389.132 1,301,643
4,119.320  4,578.856 4,108,252 4,083,582

Credit loss reserve [see (¢)]

(a) In the prior year this represented foreign exchange adjustments arising on the translation of
foreign subsidiary’s balances for consolidation purposes.

(b)  This represents unrealised gain on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments.

(¢) This is a non-distributable reserve representing the excess of regulatory and other provisions
over the IFRS provision for loan losses (note 13).



Audited Results Year Ended March 31, 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2018

28. Retained earnings reserve

The Banking Services Act, 2014 permits transfers from the Bank’s net profit to retained earnings
reserve, which constitutes a part of the capital base. Transfers to the retained earnings reserve are made
at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Such transfers must be notified to Bank of Jamaica and any

reversal must be approved by Bank of Jamaica (note 27).

29. Interest expense

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Customer deposits 1,249,407 1,401,543 1,139,074 1,216,644
Other 957.673 765.986 956.602 765.986
2,207,080  2,167.529 2,095,676 1,982,630
30. Other operating income
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fair value loss on put option ( 106,532) ( 123,835) ( 106,532) ( 123,835)
Realised foreign exchange gain on trading 920,235 832,310 920,235 832,310
Management fees 1,026,914 556,288 997,414 555,853
Fee and commission income 824,416 915,448 796,893 857,082
Dividends 23,226 265,233 23,226 265,233
Other 301,492 267,087 249,391 254.548
2,989,751 2,712,531 2,880,627 2,641.191
31. Operating expenses
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Administrative 3,463,650 3,142,336 3,416,186 3,116,354
Advertising and promotion 478,416 671,362 469,430 665,794
Audit fees 54,893 43,541 39,250 27,920
Bad debts written-off for loans and
other receivables 223,310 418,859 204,706 368,273
Depreciation and amortisation 503,187 459,305 482,034 439,762
Employee costs (note 33) 4,739,397 4,768,140 4,597,913 4,677,210
Impairment losses 65,893 143,029 64,637 80,861
Legal and professional fees 501,040 520,928 443,049 465,320
10,029,786 10,167,500 9,717,205 9,841,494
32. Taxation
(a) Taxation is based on the profit for the year, as adjusted for income tax purposes, and is made
up as follows:
Group and Bank
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
(i)  Current tax expense:
Income tax on the Bank 268,467 246,082
Adjustment in respect of prior year - 17,809
268,467 263.891
(ii))  Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (note 18) ( 12,209) 74,396
Tax losses (note 18) 270,623 (270.623)
258,414 (196.227)
Total taxation in statements of
profit or loss 526,881 67,664
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax charge:
Taxation is computed at rates of 15% and 30% and 334% for the Group and Bank. The effective
tax rate for 2018 was 39.75% (2017: 11.83%) of $1,325,191,000 (2017: $571,992,000) pre-tax
profit for the Group and 45.60% (2017: 12.38%) of $1,155,405,000 (2017: $546,708,000) pre-
tax profit for the Bank. The actual charge differs from the “expected” tax charge for the year as
follows:
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000
Profit before taxation 1,325,191 571,992 1,155,405 546,708
Computed “expected” tax expense at 15% 3,484 6,739 3,484 6,739
Computed “expected” tax expense at 30%
and 33Y:% 441,730 171,598 385,135 164,012
445,214 178,337 388,619 170,751
Difference between profit for financial
statements, and tax reporting purposes on -
Depreciation charge and capital
allowances 13,207 112,685 13,207 112,685
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment ( 807) ( 172) ( 807) ( 172)
Unfranked and exempt income (  46,599) ( 92,812) (  46,599) ( 92,812)
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdiction - ( 7,586) - -
Gain on disposal of investments ( 185,969) ( 26,673) ( 185,969) ( 26,673)
Prior year under provision - 17,809 - 17,809
Disallowed expenses, net 263,597 ( 92,674) 320,192 (192,674)
Tax losses 38,238 (_21,250) 38,238 (_21,250)
Actual tax charge 526,881 67,664 526,881 67,664
(¢)  As at January 31, 2014, tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely, however, the amount
that can be utilised in any one year is restricted to 50% of the current year’s taxable profits. At
the reporting date, unused tax losses of approximately $Nil (2017: $811,870,000) is being
carried forward for offset against future taxable profits for the Group and the Bank.
33. Employee costs
The aggregate staff costs were as follows:
Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Salaries 3,247,783 3,074,389 3,127,840 2,996,121
Pension, group life and health contributions 382,119 214,006 365,352 201,344
Statutory contributions 364,674 351,421 359,900 351,421
Other 744,821 1,128,324 744,821 1,128,324
4,739,397 4,768,140 4,597,913 4,677,210
34. Financial risk management

()

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following financial risks from its operations and the use of
financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk
Operational risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s
management of capital.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework. The Board has established the Finance Committee, the
Risk and Compliance Unit, Asset and Liability Committee and Audit Committee, which are
responsible for developing and monitoring risk management policies in their specified areas.
These committees have both executive and non-executive members and report to the Board of
Directors on their activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify, assess and measure the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. The focus of financial risk management for the Group is ensuring that the
Group has adequate economic capital and that the use of and proceeds from its financial assets
are sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its deposit base and other contractual
liabilities.

34.

Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

(b)

Overview (continued)

The goal of the investment management process is to, within the policy guidelines, optimise the
after-tax investment income and total return by investing in a diversified portfolio of securities,
whilst ensuring that the assets and liabilities are managed on a cash flow and duration basis.

A key aspect in the management of the Group’s financial risk is through matching the timing of
cash flows from assets and liabilities. The Group actively manages its investments using an
approach that balances quality, diversification, liquidity and return. The portfolio is reviewed
on a periodic basis, as are investment guidelines and limits with the objective of ensuring that
the Group can always meet its obligations without undue cost and in accordance with the
Group’s internal and regulatory capital requirements.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures. The Audit Committee is assisted by the Internal Audit
Department which undertakes cyclical reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the heads of the Compliance Department, the Risk and
Compliance Unit, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s loans
and advances to borrowers and investment securities.

There was no change in the nature of exposure to credit risk to which the Group is subjected or
its approach to measuring and managing the risk during the year.

The Group manages credit risk associated with loans by evaluating the borrowers” ability to
repay loans, ensuring that:

(i)  where collateral is held against an outstanding loan, it is sufficiently insured;
(ii)  loan loss provisioning is in keeping with Bank of Jamaica (BOJ) and CIMA Regulations;
(iii) loans are not concentrated in one individual, company or group; and

(iv) strong underwriting and credit administration systems are in place.
Counterparty credit risk

With the exception of Government of Jamaica securities, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk related to liquid fund and debt securities. Further, locally issued Government of
Jamaica notes are held with the Central Securities Depository (CSD), while global bonds issued
by the Government of Jamaica and other investment assets are held with financial institutions
which management regards as reputable and sound. These entities are regularly reviewed and
risk rated by the Risk and Compliance Unit.

Credits to borrowers

Credit facilities to members and other borrowers primarily comprise of mortgage loans. The
management of this type of credit risk is carried out through the use of a tiered approval
framework within the Underwriting Unit, up to the Loan Committee of the Board. This
framework allows for the evaluation of proposed credits, and the formal approval of those
commitments. The Board of Directors has the responsibility for the oversight of the Group’s
credit risk and the development of credit policies.

Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
customer’s financial position and where the Group has made concessions that it would not
otherwise consider. Once the loan is restructured, it remains in this category irrespective of
satisfactory performance after restructuring. At March 31, 2018, the outstanding principal
balances on loans that were restructured amounted to $2,241,570,000 (2017: $3,271,699,000)
for the Group and $2,241,570,000 (2017: $2,188,009,000) for the Bank.

Impaired credits to borrowers

Impaired credits to customers and other borrowers are credits for which management determines
that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the
contractual terms of the credit.

Past due but unimpaired credits to borrowers

These are credits where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but they are not
considered impaired based on the quality and value of security available or the stage of
collection of amounts owed by debtors.

Allowances for impairment

The Group has established an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of
incurred losses on loans. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component
that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance established
on a portfolio basis, based on requirements of the Bank of Jamaica.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off credits to borrowers (and any related allowances for impairment losses)
when it determines that the balances are uncollectible. This determination is usually made after
considering information such as changes in the borrower’s financial position, or that proceeds
from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. Credits to borrowers for
write-off must be submitted to the Credit Committee and or Board of Directors for approval.

Concentration by class and geographical area

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only with counterparties that have high
credit ratings and in Government of Jamaica securities. Therefore, management does not expect
any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group has documented investment policies in place, which guide in managing credit risk
on loans, investment securities, other assets and securities purchased under resale agreements
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst
approved counterparties based on their credit ratings and limits set.

The Group’s significant concentration of credit exposure, as at the reporting date, by geographic
area (based on the entity’s country of ownership) were as follows:

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Jamaica 135,969,093 134,896,858 135,969,093 134,896,858
United States of America 7,877,194 6,161,403 7,877,194 6,161,403
United Kingdom 11,433,833 4,662,610 11,433,833 4,662,610
Canada 1,194,471 715,610 1,194,471 715,610
Cayman Islands 322,377 5,614,622 322,377 341,098
Barbados 109,517 332,793 109,517 132,480
Bahamas 259,485 259,505 259,485 259,505
Trinidad & Tobago 382,400 649,322 382,400 649,322
Dominican Republic 1,510,684 517,882 1,510,684 517,882
159,059,054 153.810.605 159,059,054 148.336.768
Credit quality of loans
The credit quality of the Group and Bank’s loans are summarised as follows:
Group
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Neither past due nor impaired 62,784,358 62,900,028
Past due but not impaired:
Below 30 days 8,839,245 6,340,289
30 to 60 days 4,120,894 3,149,317
60 to 90 days 1,602,388 1,388,657
Individually impaired:
90-180 days 1,220,657 1,205,238
180-365 days 498,895 529,805
12-18 months 139,386 412,830
18 months and over 739,910 898,275
Less allowance for losses (note 13) (__975.698) (_1.138.878)
78,970,035 75,685,561
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34. Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued):

Credit quality of loans (continued)

Bank
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Neither past due nor impaired 62,784,358 59,108,666
Past due but not impaired:
Below 30 days 8,839,245 6,038,540
30 to 60 days 4,120,894 3,027,819
60 to 90 days 1,602,388 1,284,636
Individually impaired:
90-180 days 1,220,657 1,007,764
180-365 days 498,895 277,207
12-18 months 139,386 196,955
18 months and over 739,910 536,847
Less allowance for losses (note 13) (__975,698) (__817,248)
78,970,035 70,661,186

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk exposure is the amount of loss that the Group and the Bank would suffer if all
counterparties to which the Group and the Bank are exposed were to default at once. This is
represented substantially by the carrying amount of financial assets shown on the statement of
financial position, without taking account of the value of any collateral held.

There are no off-balance-sheet assets and the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the amount of financial assets in the statement of financial position.

Collateral and other credit enhancements held against financial assets

The Group holds collateral against credits to borrowers primarily in the form of mortgage
interests over properties. Estimates of fair values are based on the value of the collateral assessed
at the time of borrowing and are generally not updated except when credits to borrowers are
individually assessed as impaired. Other forms of collateral used by the Group include an
insurance policy, properties, motor vehicles, personal or corporate guarantees to secure loans.

The Group’s collateral generally is not held over balances with banks or brokers/dealers, except
when securities are held under resale agreements.

The fair value of collateral held against loans to borrowers and others is shown below:

Group Bank
Securities purchased under Securities purchased under
Loans and advances resale_agreements Loans and advances resale agreements
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Against neither past due nor
impaired financial assets:
Properties 169,434,120 168,419,917 - - 169,434,120 161,819,308 - -
Debt securities - - 1137264 6,881,465 - - L137.264 6,881,465
Liens on motor vehicles 2,126,362 653,144 - - 2,126,362 609,965 - -
Hypothecation of deposits - 1.515.613 - - - 1.504,280 - -
Subtotal 171.560.482 170,588,674 1,137,264 6,881,465  171,560.482 1.137.264 6,881.465
Against past due but not impaired
financial assets:
Properties 43,313,609 37.969.035 - = 43,313,609 37.055.594 - -
Subtotal 43,313.609 37.969.035 - - 43.313,609 37.055.594 - -
due and impaired
s:
Properties 8,744,158 9,529,688 - - 8,744,158 8,240,373 - -
Liens on motor vehicles = 3.897 - - - - - -
Subtotal 8.744.158 9.533.585 - - 8,744.158 8.240.373 - -
Grand total 223,618,249 218,001,204  L137.264 6,881,465 223.618.249 209229520  L137.264 6,881,465

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to the Group arising from either its inability to meet its
obligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable costs or
losses. Liquidity risk is broken down into two primary categories:

(i)  Funding liquidity risk - the risk that the Group will not be able to meet the expected and
unexpected current and future cash flows and collateral needs without affecting either its daily
operations or its financial condition; and

(i) Asset/market liquidity risk - is the Group’s inability to liquidate assets in an orderly fashion

without incurring loss on liquidation. This usually stems from illiquid markets or market
disruptions.

Management of liquidity risk

The key measurement used for assessing liquidity risk is the ratio of liquid assets (as defined)
to total liabilities. The liquidity ratios at the reporting date for the Group are as follows:

Bank
Requirement Actual
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
Jamaica Dollar 26 26 29 29
United States of America Dollar 29 28 49 55
Canadian Dollar 29 28 84 90
Pound Sterling 29 28 42 39

There was no change in the nature of exposure to liquidity risk which the Bank is subjected to
or its approach to measuring and managing the risk during the year.

An analysis of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities and unrecognised
loan commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity is presented below.
The analysis provided is by estimating timing of the amounts recognised in the statement of
financial position. The Group does not expect that all its customers will demand the payment of
funds at the earliest date possible.

Group and Bank
2

Contractual undisc ed cash flows

Total Less More
Carrying cash than 3-12 1-2 2-5 than
amount outflow 3 months months years years S years
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Due to specialised financial
institutions 17,398,102 31,981,935 421 4,000 34,420 55,802 31,887,292
Customer deposits 115,873,375 116,242,684 102,664,647 11,999,675 1,334,235 244,126 -
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 8,735,145 8,917,071 7,459,103 1,097,919 318,000 42,049 -
Margin loan payable 2,506,396 2,506,396 2,506,396
Other payables 1.546.444 1,546,444 1,546,444 - - - -
146,059,462 161,194,530 114,177,011 13,101,594 1,686,655 341,977 31,887,292
Unrecognised loan commitments - 6,516,113 _ 6.516,113 - - - -
9,462 167,710,643 120,693,124 13,101,594 1,686,655 3419 31.887.292
Group
2017
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
Total Less More
Carrying cash than 3-12 1-2 than
amount outflow 3 months months years S years
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $7000 $°000
Bank overdraft 12,646 12,646 12,646 - - - -
Due to specialised financial
institutions 15,947,521 29,672,712 711 6,613 56,333 84,499 29,524,556
Customer deposits 116,212,458 117,307,644 105,170,306 11,668,870 296,431 172,037
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 7.186.,955 7.402,808 4,857,671 2,545,137 - - -
Other payables 1.280.255 1.280.255 1.280.255 - - - -
140,639,835 155,676,065 111,321,589 14,220,620 352,764 256,536 29,524,556
Unrecognised loan commitments - 6,096,769 6,096,769 - - - -
140,639,835 161,772,834 117,418,358 14,220,620 352,764 256,536 29,524,556
Bank
2017
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
Total Less More
Carrying cash than 3-12 1-2 2-5 than
amount outflow 3 months months vears years 5 years
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Bank overdraft 12,646 12,646 12.646 - - - -
Due to specialised financial
institutions 15,947,521 29,672,712 711 6,613 56,333 84,499
Customer deposits 109,312,357 109,520,412 99,954,968 9,101,986 291,421 172,037 -
Due to related entities 2,141,298 2,141,298 2,141,298 - - - -
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 7,186,955 7,402,808 4,857,671 2,545,137 - - -
Other payables 1,186,327 1,186,327 1,186,327 - - - -
135,787,104 149,936,203 108,153,621 11,653,736 347,754 256,536 29,524,556
Unrecognised loan commitments - 6.096.769 6,096,769 - - - -

135,787,104 156,032,972 114,250,390  11.653,736 347,754 256,536 29,524,556

Financial risk management (continued)

(d)

Market risk:

Audited Results Year Ended March 31, 2018

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, foreign exchange rates
and equity prices will affect the value of the Group’s assets, the amount of its liabilities and/or
the Group’s income. Market risk arises in the Group due to fluctuations in the value of liabilities
and the value of investments held. The Group is exposed to market risk on all of its financial

assets.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Management of market risk

The Asset and Liability Committee manages market risks in accordance with its Investment
Policy. The Committee through the Board Finance Committee reports regularly to the Board of
Directors on its activities. For each of the major components of market risk, the Group has
policies and procedures in place which detail how each risk should be monitored and managed.
The management of each of these major components of risk and the exposure of the Group at
the reporting date to each major risk are addressed below.

There was no change in the nature of exposure to market risk which the Group is subjected to,
or its approach to measuring and managing the risk during the year.

(i)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Group manages this risk by regularly re-evaluating
the yield, duration and modified duration on given financial instruments.

The interest rate risk analysis shows significant excess of short-term interest-bearing
liabilities over short-term interest-earning assets. This is a direct consequence of the nature
of the Group’s business, which involves granting long-term loans (up to 30 years) funded
by savings which are withdrawable on demand or after short notice. The Group may,
provided that one month’s notice is given, change the interest rates on its mortgages. In
addition, mortgages may be called after six months’ notice. The savings fund has been
stable and is expected to remain so.

The Group manages the risk by monitoring its customer deposits, taking steps to ensure
its stability, and by adjusting interest rates to the extent practicable within the overall
policy of encouraging long-term savings and facilitating home ownership.

The following table summarises the carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities
to arrive at the Group’s interest rate gap based on the earlier of contractual repricing or
maturity dates. There were no off-balance sheet financial instruments giving rise to

interest rate risk.

Group and Bank

2018
Weighted
Tmmediately Within Three to Over 1 Non-rate average
rate sensitive 3 months 12 months year sensitive Total interest rate
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 %
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 643,527 - - - 25,959,354 26,602,881 0.81
Securities purchased - -
under resale agreements - 921,919 - - 218 922,137 5.09
Investments - 29,930,379 21,308,203 - 778,482 52,017,064 4.94
Other assets - - - - 395212 395,212 -
Loans - 1.258.82 467331  76.822.723 421,158 78.970.035 8.06
Total financial assets 643,527 32,111,121  21.775.534  76.822.723  27.554.424 158.907.329
Liabilities
Due to specialised financial
institutions - 17,398,102 - - - 17,398,102 421
Customer deposits 80,957,261 21,557,550 11,800,723 1,320,894 236,947 115,873,375 1.01
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements - 7,348,870 1,050,640 300,000 35,635 6.00
Other payables - - - - 1,546,444 s 0.00
Margin loan payable - 2.506.396 - - - 2.506.396 230
Total financial liabilities 80,957.26 48810918 2,851,363 20,894 819.026 46,059.462
On statement of financial
position gap, being total
interest rate sensitivity
gap (80.313.734) (16.699.797) 8924.171  75.201.829 25.735.398 12.847.867
Cumulative gap (80.313.734) (97.013,531) (88.089,360) (12,887.531) 12,847.867 -
Group
2017
Weighted
Immediately Within 3to 12 Over 1 Non-rate average
rate sensitive 3 months months vear sensitive Total interest rate
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 %
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,146,568 478,306 - - 17.856,587 24,481,461 1.25
Securities purchased
under resale agreements - 3,895,182 2,436,119 - 8,841 6,340,142 4.42
Investments - 5,000,704 3,646,522 36,939,377 935,844 46,522,447 5.44
Other assets - - - - 806,134 806,134 -
Due from related entities - - - - 1,140,828 1,140,828 -
Loans - 478.972 1.448.107 _73.385.777 372.705 75,685,561 8.94
Total financial assets 6,146,568 9.853.164 7.530.748 110.325.154 21.120.939 154,976,573
Liabilities
Bank overdraft 12,646 - - - - 12,646 11.13
Due to specialised financial
institutions - 15,947,521 - - - 15,947,521 4.34
Customer deposits 72,839,492 33,766,311 9,034,231 288,535 283,889 116,212,458 1.25
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements - 4,745,787 2,395,216 - 45,952 7,186,955 4.96
Other payables - - - - 1.280.255 1.280.255 -
Total financial liabilities 72,852,138 54.459.619 11.429.447 288,535 1.610.096 140.639.835
On statement of financial
position gap, being total
interest rate sensitivity
gap (66.705.570) (_44.606.455) (__3.898.699) 110,036,619 19.510.843 14.336.738
Cumulative gap (66,705,570) (111,312.025) (115.210,724) (__5.174,105) 14,336,738 -
Bank
2017
Weighted
Immediately Within Three to Over 1 Non-rate average
rate sensitive 3 months 12 months vear sensitive Total interest rate
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $7000 $°000 %
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,440,466 - - - 17,856,587 24,297,053 0.32
Securities purchased
under resale agreements - 3,895,182 2,436,119 - 8.841 6,340,142 4.42
Investments 4,805,349 3,646,522 36,939,378 919,144 46,310,393 5.44
Other assets - - - - 753,134 753,134 -
Due from related entities - - - - 1,103,919 1,103,919 -
Loans - 478.972 1,442,584 68,366,925 372,705 70,661,186 9.20
Total financial assets 6,440,466 9.179.503 7.525225 105,306,303 21.014.330 149,465,827
Liabilities
Bank overdraft 12,646 - - - - 12,646 11.13
Due to specialised financial
institutions - 15,947,521 - - - 15,947,521 4.34
Customer deposits 73,726,625 25,979,078 9,034,230 288,535 283,889 109,312,357 1.19
Due to related entities - - - - 2,141,298 2,141,298 -
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements - 4,745,787 2395216 - 45,952 7,186,955 4.96
Other payables - - - - 1,186,327 1.186.327 -
Total financial liabilities 73,739.271 46.672.386 11.429.446 288,535 3.657.466 135.787.104
On statement of financial
position gap, being total
interest rate sensitivity
gap (67.298.805) (_37.492.883) (__3.904.221) 105.017.768 17.356.864 13.678.723
Cumulative gap (67.298.805) (104,791,688) (108.695,909) (__3.678,141) 13,678,723 -
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(d)

(e

Market risk (continued):

Management of market risk (continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk (continued):
Sensitivity to interest rate movements:

The sensitivity of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities to interest rate risk is
monitored using the following scenarios:

Increase in Decrease in
interest rate interest rate
J$ denominated instruments 100 basis points 100 basis points
US$ denominated
instruments 50 basis points 50 basis points

An increase/decrease, using the above scenarios, would adjust reserves and profit or loss
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Group and Bank

2018 2017
Increase  Decrease Increase  Decrease
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Other comprehensive income (232,321) 1,044,936 (260,444) 501,149
Profit - - (__4,407) 16,507

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:

An increase/decrease using the above scenarios would adjust reserves and profit or loss
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is done on the same basis as for
2017.

Group and Bank

Effect on profit

Increase Decrease
$°000 $°000
March 31, 2018
Variable rate instruments 80,641 ( 80,641)
March 31, 2017
Variable rate instruments 84,361 (_84,361)

(ii)  Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities held by the Group as part
of its investment portfolio. Management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in
its investment portfolio based on market expectations. The primary goal of the Group’s
investment strategy is to maximise risk-adjusted investment returns.

A 15% (2017: 10%) increase or decrease in the market price at the reporting date would
result in an increase or an equal decrease, respectively, in reserves for the Group and the
Bank of $23,021,000 (2017: $19,858,000).

(iii) Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group incurs foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency
other than the Jamaica dollar. The main currencies giving rise to this risk are United States
dollars, Canadian dollars, Cayman dollars, Euro and Pound sterling.

The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by daily monitoring
their cost of funds against market price so as to ensure that a consistent positive spread is
maintained between the buying and selling price of the traded currencies. Foreign
currency liabilities are generally backed by foreign currency assets.

Net foreign currency assets/(liabilities) were as follows:

Group Bank

2018 2017 2018 2017

000 000 000 000
United States dollars 15,687 32,490 15,687 33,577
Canadian dollars ( 965) ( 727) ( 965) ( 727)
Pound sterling 1,822 (35,879) 1,822 (36,044)
Euro 213 119 213 119
Cayman dollars 2,224 3,072 2,224 3,072

The Bank of Jamaica’s weighted average exchange rates ruling at the year-end are shown
at note 41(0)(i).

Sensitivity analysis.

A 4% (2017: 6%) weakening of the Jamaica dollar against the various currencies at March
31 would have increased operating surplus by the amounts shown. A 2% (2017: 1%)
strengthening of the Jamaica dollar against these currencies at March 31 would have had
the opposite effect as shown. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular,
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis was done on the same basis for 2017.

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
4% 2% 6% 1% 4% 2% 6% 1%

United States dollar 78,638 (39,319) 249,948 (41,658) 78,638 (39,319) 258,308 (43,051)
Canadian dollars (3,730) 1,865 ( 4,209) 702 ( 3,730) 1,865 ( 4,209) 702
Pounds sterling 12,883 ( 6,442) (341,669) 56,945 12,883 ( 6,442) (343241) 57,207
Euro 1,318 ( 659) 963 ( 160) 1,318 ( 659) 963 ( 160)
Cayman dollars 13,629 (_6.815) 28,806 (_4,801) 13,629 (_6.815) 28,806 (_4,801)

Operational risk:

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the Group’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements, natural and man-made disasters as well as generally accepted standards
of corporate behaviour.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk to achieve the optimal balance between the
Group’s financial viability and its performance against the requirements of an effective
operational risk management framework.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address
operational risk is assigned to the Risk and Compliance Unit centrally and in daily operations
through the senior management team.

There was no change to the Group’s approach to operational risk management during the year.

This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Bank standards for the
management of operational risk in the following areas:

. risk policies/guidelines for assisting management to understand the ways in which risks
can be measured, managed, identified and controlled;

. requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent
authorisation of transactions;

. requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

. compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

) documentation of controls and procedures;

. requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of
controls and procedures to address the risks identified;

. requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial actions;

. development of business continuity programmes including contingency plans, testing and
training;

. training and professional development;

. ethical and business standards; and

. risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

The Group Risk and Compliance Unit conducts frequent operational risk reviews of business
lines in keeping with established policies and is supported with independent reviews undertaken
by Group Internal Audit. The results of all operational risk reviews are discussed with the
management of the business unit to which they relate and the recommendations and required
actions agreed. Summaries of the operational risk reviews are submitted to the Audit Committee
and to the Board of Directors.

34.
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Capital management:

Regulatory capital

Audited Results Year Ended March 31, 2018

The Group’s main regulator is the Bank of Jamaica, which monitors the capital requirements.
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the Group. This is supported by the
annual Group Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process which seeks to ensure that the
Bank and its subsidiary, are adequately capitalised.

In implementing current capital requirements, the Bank of Jamaica requires the Bank to maintain
a prescribed ratio of total capital to total risk weighted assets of 10%. The total regulatory capital
expressed as a percentage of the total risk weighted assets at March 31, 2018 was 18% (2017:

16%).

Foreign subsidiary

The Bank’s former subsidiary is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by the
Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (CIMA). Failure to meet minimum regulatory capital
requirements can initiate certain actions by CIMA that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the subsidiary’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines used
by CIMA, the subsidiary must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of its assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The subsidiary’s regulatory capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgements by CIMA about components and risk weightings.

As at March 31, 2017, the subsidiary’s regulatory capital amount and its risk asset ratio, as well
as CIMA’s minimum requirements are presented in the following table:

2017 minimum
for regulatory

Actual capital and capital

2017 adequacy purposes
Regulatory capital(CIS) 8,697,000 6,642,000
Risk asset ratio 19.64% 15%
Liquidity ratio 14% 10%

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets that are traded in an active market are based on quoted market prices.
For all other financial assets, the group determines fair values using other valuation techniques as
detailed in note [41(d)(vii)].

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, securities purchased under resale agreements, other
assets, due to/from related parties, securities sold under repurchase agreements and other payables
are considered to approximate their carrying values due to their relatively short-term nature.

The estimated fair value of loans is the principal receivable less any allowance for losses.

(a)

(b)

Accounting classifications and fair values

Group and Bank

2018
Carrying amount Fair value
Other
Loans and Available- financial
receivables for-sale liabilities Total Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets measured at fair
value:

Corporate bonds - - 12,030,150 - 12,030,150

12,030,150
Government of Jamaica sceuritics 5
Treasury bills

22,925,637

Quoted equities - 153,474 -
Unquoted equities - 20353
- 37,142,633 37,142,633 153474 36,989,159 - 37,142,633
Financial assets not messured at fair
value:
Cash and cash equivalents 26,602,881 - 26,602,881
Corporate bonds 757,247 - - 757,247
Certificates of deposit 13,491,529 - - 13,491,529
Securities purchased under resale agreements 922,137 - - 922,137
Loans 78,970,035 - - 78,970,035
Promissory note 30,000 - - 30,000
Other assets 395212 - - 395212
Due from related entities 1,587.054 - - 1,587,054
122,756,005 - - 122,756,005
Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value:
Due to specialised financial institutions - - 17,398,102 17,398,102
Customer deposits - - 115873375 115873375
Due to related entities - - 2,506,396 2,506,396
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements - - 8,735,145 8,735,145
Other payables - - 1,546,444 1,546,444
- - 146,050,462 146,059,462
Group
2017
Carrving amount Fair value
At fair value
through Other
Available- profit
for-sale  orloss Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 000 §000
Financial assets measured at fair value:
Corporate bonds - 5,389,835 - 5,389,835 - 5380835 -
Government of Jamaica securities - 25882520 106,532 052 - 25989052 -
Quoted cquities - 198,580 - 198,580 198,580 - -
Unquoted cquities - 80 - - 80 - 80
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 30452 - 30452 - 30452 -
= 31471015 _ 136984 - 31,607,999 98,580 31409419 _ - 31,607,999
Financial assets not measured at fair
value:
Cash and cash equivalents 24,481,461 - - - 24,481,461
Corporate bonds 773,649 - - - 773,649
Cerificates of deposit 3,403,615 - - - 13,403,615
ties purchased under resale agreements 6, a2 - - - 6,340,142
ans 75,685,561 - - - 75,685,561
Other assets 806,134 - - 806,134
Due from related entities 1,140,028 - P - 1.140,028
122,630,590 - - 122,630,590
Financial ies not measured at fair
- - 12,646 12,646
sed financial institutions : 15,947,521 15947521
leposits 116,212,458 116,212,458
s sold under repurchase
- - 7,186,955 7,186,955
- 1280255 1280255
140,639, 5 140,639.83
Bank
2017
Carrying amount Fair value
At fair value
through Other
Loans and profit financial
receivables or loss Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
assets measured at fair
bonds - 5,194,481 - - 5,194,481 5,194,481 E 5,194,481
Government of Jamaica securities - 25,882,520 106,532 - 25,989,052 - 25,989,052 - 25,989,052
Quoted equities - 198,580 - - 198,580 198,580 - - 198,580
Unquoted equities - - - 80 - 80 - 80
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 30452 - 30452 - 30452 - 30452
. 275, 36,984 - 31412645 198580 31214065 - 31412685
ial assets not measured at fair
Cash and cash equivalents 24,297,053
Corporate bonds 649
Centificates of deposit 13,403,615

purchased under resale agreements

Other a
Due from related entities

entities

ies sold under repurchase
agreements

Other payables

. e 7,332,698
12,646

15.947.521

109,312,357

2,141.298

7,186,955 7,186,955

- 1186327 327
135,787,104 135,787,104

Valuation techniques for investment securities classified as Level 2:

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of

investment securities.

Type

US$ denominated Government of
Jamaica (GOJ) securities

and corporate bonds

J$ denominated securities issued
or guaranteed by GOJ

Foreign exchange forward
contracts

Valuation techniques

Obtain bid price provided by a recognized
broker/dealer
Apply price to estimate fair value.

Obtain bid price provided by a recognised
pricing source (which uses Jamaica-market-
supplied indicative bids)

Apply price to estimate fair value.

Obtain forward foreign exchange rates from
Blooomberg
Apply rates to estimate fair value.
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41.

Commitments

At March 31, 2018, the Bank had:

()

(®)

(@

Unexpired lease commitments payable as follows:

Group and Bank

2018 2017

$°000 $°000

Within one year 60,865 93,291
Subsequent years 86,800 58,725
147,665 152,016

Included in the unexpired lease commitments are amounts due to related entities totalling
$46,202,000 (2017: $79,429,000) for the Group and Bank.

Undisbursed approved loans amounting to
$6,096,769,000) for the Group and Bank.

approximately $6,516,113,000 (2017:

Capital commitments:

Commitments for capital expenditure amounted to $21,147,000 (2017: $296,839,000) for the
Group and Bank as at the reporting date.

Sponsorship commitments:

Commitments for sponsorship expenditures amounted to $40,000,000 (2017: $Nil).

Contingent liabilities

There are several claims which have been brought against the Group in respect of damages for alleged
breach of contract and other matters. It is the opinion of the Group’s Legal Counsel that, in the unlikely
event that these claims should be successful, liability should not be significant.

Scheme of arrangement

®

)

In prior year, under the court approved Scheme of Arrangement, certain transactions were
effected to reorganise the JN Group. As a result, the corresponding amounts in the consolidated
and separate financial statements were restated and the 2017 reporting period adjusted as if the
reorganisation had occured before the start of the earliest period presented.

The operations of JN Finance Limited were transferred to the Bank during the prior year. The
Net Assets acquired amounted to $7,526,000.

Distribution to equity shareholders

Dividends

Group Bank
2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
832000 - 832,000 -

At the Board of Directors” meetings held on September 11, 2017, January 10, 2018 and December 31,
2018, the directors declared total interim dividends of $832,000,000.

Changes in accounting policies

Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in
note 41 for all periods presented in these financial statements.

The details, nature and effects of the changes are as follows:

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that became effective during the year:

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations came into effect during the current
financial year. The Group has assessed them and has adopted those which are relevant to its financial
statements:

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2017, requires an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash flows.

Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 contain amendments to certain standards applicable to the
Group as follows:

- IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, effective retrospectively for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, has been amended to clarify that
the disclosure requirements for interests in other entities also apply to interests that are
classified as held for sale or distribution.

IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, effective retrospectively for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, has been amended to clarify or state the
following:

(i) A venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect to measure its
investments in an associate or joint venture at fair value through profit or loss. This
election can be made on an investment-by-investment basis.

(i) A non-investment entity investor may elect to retain the fair value accounting applied by
an investment entity associate or investment entity joint venture to its subsidiaries. This
election can be made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes, effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017, clarifies the following:

- The existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not
affected by possible future changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery
of the asset.

- A deferred tax asset can be recognised if the future bottom line of the tax return is expected
to be a loss, if certain conditions are met.

- Future taxable profits used to establish whether a deferred tax can be recognised should be
the amount calculated before the effect of reversing temporary differences.

- An entity can assume that it will recover an asset for more than its carrying amount if there
is sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this.

- Deductible temporary differences related to unrealised losses should be assessed on a
combined basis for recognition unless a tax law restricts the use of losses to deductions
against income of a specific type.

The adoption of these amendments did not result in any change to the presentation and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

Except for the changes explained in note 40, the Group has consistently applied the following
accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements.

(@)

Basis of consolidation:
[i]  Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control
is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises
is tested annually for impairment. Any gain or bargain purchase is recognised in profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the
issued debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts, generally, are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If
the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured and
settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in fair value of
the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
. the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

. the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquired entity; plus

. if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing
interest in the acquired entity; less

. the net recognised amount (generally, fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed.
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Basis of consolidation (continued):
[ii]  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The subsidiary is listed
in note 1. The consolidated or Group financial statements comprise the financial results of
the Bank and its subsidiary prepared up to March 31, 2018 and adjusted for inter-company
transactions.

The financial statements of its subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases.

The financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

[iii] Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date. Changes in the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-
controlling interests, even if doing so causes the non-controlling interest to have a deficit
balance.

[iv] Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary, any related non-controlling interest and other components of equity.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

[v] Interest in equity-accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. ~ Interest in associates are
accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initially at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of equity-accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control
ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the Group’s carrying
amount is reduced to $Nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued, except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations, or made payments on
behalf of an associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of profits equals the share of losses
not recognised.

Book value accounting is used to recognise transfer of investments in associates between
investors under common control. The result of the transaction is recognised in equity as
arising from a transaction with sharcholders. Any difference between the amount paid and
the carrying amount of the investee, that is, excess consideration is recognised as an
additional investment and any deficit is recorded as dividends received.

[vi] Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, any unrealised gain and losses or income and
expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gain arising from transactions with
associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gain, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Property, plant and equipment:

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses [see note 41(r)]. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be reliably measured.
The cost of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit
or loss.

Property, plant and equipment, with the exception of freehold land and art work, on which no
depreciation is provided, are depreciated on the straight-line basis at annual rates to write down
the assets to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives and is generally
recognised in profit or loss. Leasehold properties are amortised in equal instalments over the
shorter of the lease term and the properties’ estimated useful lives.

The depreciation/amortisation rates are as follows:
Freehold buildings

Leasehold buildings
Leaschold improvements

2%2%
Shorter of lease term and useful life
Shorter of lease term and useful life

Computers — hardware and software 33%%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10%
Motor vehicles 20%

The depreciation/amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each
reporting date.

Real estate and development in progress:

The cost of land acquisition and development, construction and overheads, including interest
costs, are deferred, except for costs in excess of amounts recoverable from subsequent sales
which are expensed as incurred. Income from development projects is recognised upon
substantial completion of each project. Development in progress is shown net of deposits
received from purchasers.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise. For the purpose of the financial
statements, financial assets have been determined to include cash and cash equivalents,
securities purchased under resale agreements, investments, due from related entities, loans and
certain other assets.

Financial liabilities include other payables, bank overdraft, securities sold under repurchase
agreements, due to specialised financial institutions, margin loan payable and customer deposits.

[i] Classification:

Management determines the classification of investments at the time of acquisition and
takes account of the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Investments are
classified as loans and receivables, at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
and available-for-sale securities.

Loans and receivables are those created or acquired by the Group, with fixed or
determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
comprise cash and cash equivalents, debenture, bonds, certificates of deposit, loans and
other assets.

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss are those held for trading or those
designated by management and comprise equity and certain debt securities. Such
investments are those which the Group manages and makes purchase and sale decisions
based on their fair value in accordance with its investment strategy.

Held-to-maturity securities are those with fixed or determinable payment and fixed
maturity that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Any sale or
reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments not
close to their maturity would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity
investments as available-for-sale and prevent the Group from classifying investment
securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the following two financial years.
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Financial instruments (continued):
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[iii]

[iv]
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Classification (continued):
Non-derivative financial liabilities are classified as other financial liability.

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value from the price of the
underlying items such as equities, bond interest rate, foreign exchange or other indices.
Derivatives enable users to increase, reduce or alter exposure to credit or market risk. The
Group makes use of derivatives to hedge foreign currency and interest rate exposures.

The Group evaluates financial instruments which it acquires or issues to determine
whether derivatives are embedded in any of the contracts (making it a "host contract").

The Group accounts for an embedded derivative separately from the host contract when
certain conditions are met. Separated embedded derivatives are accounted for depending
on their classification, and are presented in the statement of financial position together
with the host contract. When an embedded derivative cannot be separated from the host
contract, the entire contract is designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale securities are financial assets that are so designated by the Group.
Available-for-sale investments comprise certain debt and equity instruments.
Recognition:

The Group initially recognises loans and advances, securities purchased/sold under
resale/repurchase agreements and debt securities on the date that they are originated. All
other financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value, plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Derecognition:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets
that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset
the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Measurement:

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, they are
measured at fair value. Unrealised gain and losses arising from changes in fair value,
except for impairment losses, and foreign currency differences on debt instruments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in investment revaluation
reserve in equity [see note 27(b)]. Where fair value cannot be reliably determined, they
are stated at cost. Where these securities are disposed of or impaired, the related
accumulated unrealised gain or losses are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value
and changes therein, including any interest or dividend income are recognised in profit or
loss. Directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

All non-derivative financial assets classified as loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method. Premiums and discounts are included in the carrying amount of the related
instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate of the instrument.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value. Attributable costs are expensed in profit
or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at fair value.
Where the derivative financial instrument is not designated in a hedge relationship that
qualifies for hedge accounting, all changes in fair value are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale and at fair value through
profit or loss is based on their quoted market bid price at the reporting date. Where a
quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based
on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the
reporting date for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models
are used, inputs are based on market related measures at the reporting date.

Identification and measurement of impairment:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence that financial instruments not carried at
fair value through profit or loss are impaired.

Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and the loss event has an impact on the
future cash flows of the asset that can be estimated reliably. If any such indication exists,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired include
default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on
terms that the Group would not otherwise consider, the disappearance of an active market
for a security, adverse changes in the payment status of the borrowers or issuers,
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter into bankruptcy or observable data indicating
that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a group of financial assets.
For an investment in an equity instrument, objective evidence of impairment includes a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost.

The Group considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and collective level.
All individually significant financial assets are assessed for impairment. All significant
assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are
then collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together financial assets (carried at
amortised cost) with similar risks.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information of the
probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans
and advances and other assets. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment
loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by
reclassifying the cumulative loss that has been recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified is the difference between
the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss.
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olicies (continued
Financial instruments (continued):
[vi] Identification and measurement of impairment (continued):

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in
the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

An impairment loss in respect of an equity accounted investee is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss and is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

[vii] Fair value measurement:

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access
at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for
the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is
normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.
If the Group determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value,
adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is
wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the
Group measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions
at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and
credit risk that are managed by the Group on the basis of the net exposure to either market
or credit risk are measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long
position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those
portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis
of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Securities purchased/sold under resale/repurchase agreements:

Securities purchased under resale agreements (“Reverse repo”) and securities sold under
repurchase agreements (“Repo”) are short-term transactions whereby securities are bought/sold
with simultaneous agreements to resell/repurchase the securities on a specified date and at a
specified price. Reverse repos and repos are accounted for as short-term collateralised lending
and borrowing, respectively, and are measured at amortised cost, less impairment.

The difference between the purchase/sale and resale/repurchase considerations is recognised on
the accrual basis over the period of the agreements, using the effective yield method, and is
included in interest income and expense, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at cost. They comprise cash balances and cash reserve
at the Bank of Jamaica, cash in hand and short-term, highly liquid investments where original
maturities do not exceed three months from the reporting date, are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term commitments. Bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the
Bank’s cash management for financing operations are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Investment properties:

Investment properties are measured at their cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Rental income from investment properties is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the term of the lease, and accounted for on the accrual basis.

Intangible assets:
[i]  Other intangible assets:

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are
measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation [see (iii) below] and any accumulated
impairment losses.

[ii]  Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

[iii] Amortisation:

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets, unless such lives are infinite. Intangible assets are amortised
from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Software 3 years

Assets held for sale:

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be
recovered primarily through sale, rather than continuing use, are classified as held-for-sale.
Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair values less cost
to sell.

Impairment losses on initial reclassification as held-for-sale and subsequent gain and losses on
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held for sale, property, plant
and equipment are no longer depreciated.

Other assets:

Other assets are measured at amortised cost, less impairment losses.

Employee benefits:

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Group in exchange for service
rendered by employees. These include current or short-term benefits such as salaries, bonuses,
statutory contributions, annual leave, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care and

housing; post-employment benefits such as pension; and other long-term employee benefits
such as termination benefits.
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Employee benefits (continued):

The Group provides post-retirement pension and health insurance benefits to employees who
have satisfied certain minimum service requirements.

Employee benefits that are earned as a result of past or current service are recognised in the
following manner:

[i]  Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past services provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

[ii] Defined contribution plans:

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plans is expensed as the related
services are provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

[iii] Defined-benefit plans:

Employee benefits, comprising post-employment obligations included in the financial
statements, have been actuarially determined by a qualified independent actuary,
appointed by management using the projected unit credit method. The actuary’s report
outlines the scope of the valuation and the actuary’s opinion. The actuarial valuation is
conducted in accordance with IAS 19, and the financial statements reflect the Bank’s post-
employment benefit obligations as computed by the actuary. In carrying out their audit,
the auditors rely on the actuary’s report.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of its defined-benefit plans (note 23) is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that value is discounted to determine the present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is determined
by reference to the yield at the reporting date on long-term government instruments of
terms approximating those of the Group’s obligation.

Re-measurements of the net defined-benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gain and
losses, are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Group
determines the net interest expense on the net defined-benefit liability for the year by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the year to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability during the year as a result of the contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognise gain and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

[iv] Other long-term employee benefits:

The Bank’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefits that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

[v] Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises cost for a restructuring. If
benetits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period, then they are discounted.

Provisions and contingencies:
[i] Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. If the effect is material, discount provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

[ii]  Contingencies

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Other payables:

Other payables are measured at amortised cost.

Taxation:
[i]  Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year, as
adjusted for tax purposes, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

[ii] Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:
the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries, to the extent
that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be realised. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insignificant to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future
taxable profits, adjusted for reversal of existing temporary differences, are considered
based on the business plans for the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future
profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted as at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities against current tax assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities,
but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Foreign currencies:

[i]  Monetary foreign currency balances at the reporting date are translated at the Bank of
Jamaica’s weighted average rate of US$1.00 = J$125.3198, UK£1.00 = J$176.7955 and
Cdn$1.00 = J$96.6059, being the rates of exchange ruling on that date. Other foreign
currency balances at the reporting date have been translated using indicative rates
provided by the Bank of Jamaica of Eurol.00 = J$154.6148 and Cayman Dollar 1.00 =
J$153.2132.

[ii] Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling on the
dates of those transactions. Realised and unrealised gain and losses arising from
fluctuations in exchange rates are included in profit or loss, except for differences arising
on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity investments [note 40(d)(v)] and foreign
operations [note 41(0)(iii)].

[iii] For the purpose of consolidating the financial statements of the Group’s foreign
subsidiary, the statement of financial position is translated at the closing rate and the
statement of revenue and expenses at the average rate of exchange for the year. Translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in an exchange
equalisation reserve in equity [note 27(a)].

Provision for credit losses:

The provision for credit losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for
probable credit losses and is based on management’s evaluation of individual loans in the credit
portfolio. The evaluation takes all relevant matters into consideration, including prevailing and
anticipated business and economic conditions, the collateral held, the debtor’s ability to repay
the loan and guidance provided by Bank of Jamaica, which requires that appropriate provision
be made for all loans on which interest payments and principal repayments are ninety or more
days in arrears. Amounts are written-off from the provision whenever management has
concluded that such amounts may not be recovered.

General provisions for credit losses are established against the portfolio where a prudent
assessment by the Group of adverse economic trends and losses inherent in its portfolio suggest
that losses may occur, but such losses cannot be determined on an item-by-item basis. This
provision is maintained by the Group at levels in excess of the minimum 2% established by the
Bank of Jamaica.

IFRS only permits specific loan loss provision and a general provision based upon the Group’s
actual credit loss experience. It also requires that the expected future cash flows of impaired
loans be discounted and the increase in the present value be reported as interest income. The
credit loss provision required under the Regulations (note 2) that is in excess of the requirements
of IFRS is treated as an appropriation of retained earnings and included in a non-distributable
credit loss reserve.

Interest income and expense:

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss on the accrual basis, using the
effective yield method, except that, where collection of interest income is considered doubtful,
or where payment is outstanding for 90 days or more, the cash basis is used. Accrued interest on
loans, which are in arrears for 90 days and over, is excluded from income in accordance with the
Regulations.

IFRS requires that when collection of loans becomes doubtful, such loans should be written
down to their recoverable amounts after which interest income is to be recognised based on the
rate of interest that was used to discount the future cash flows in arriving at the recoverable
amount. The difference between the basis of interest recognition under IFRS and the Regulations
is not considered material.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or cash generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Operating leases:

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the life of the lease.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised in profit or loss when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer and the consideration can be
reliably measured. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, or material associated costs on the possible return of goods.

Investment income arises from financial assets and is comprised of interest and dividends and
recognised gain/losses on financial assets. Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive income is established.

Accounting policy for interest income is described at note 41(q).
Fees and commission:

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the negotiation of a financial asset
or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, investment management
fees, sales commission, placement fees and syndication fees, are recognised as the related
services are performed. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the drawdown of
a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised on the straight-line basis over the commitment
period.

Other fees and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees that are
recognised and expensed as the services are received.

Definition of related party:
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group (“reporting entity”).
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.
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Definition of related party (continued):

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group. If the group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations not yet effective:

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations have been issued which are not
yet effective for the current year and which the Group has not early-adopted. The Group has
assessed the relevance of all such new standards, amendments and interpretations with respect
to the Group’s operations and has determined that the following are likely to have an effect on
the financial statements.

The Group is required to adopt IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from
January 1, 2018. The standard establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC
13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

The Group will apply a five-step model to determine when to recognise revenue, and at what
amount. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as) an entity
transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects
to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognised at a
point in time, when control of goods or services is transferred to the customer; or over time,
in a manner that best reflects the entity’s performance.

Management has assessed that the main umpact of this standard 1s in respect of fees and
commssion income. The Group carns fees and commission income on provision ol account
scrvicing, investment management, placement and syndication scrvices. Based on
preliminary review, [FRS 15 is nol expected o have a material impact on the timing and
recognition of fee and commission income. However, management has not yel completed
its assessmient and the financial impact has not yet been determined.

The Group is required to adopt IFRS 9 Firancicd Instrwments from January 1, 2018, The
standard replaces TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and sets out
requirements lor recognmsimg and measuring fimancial assets, inancial labilities and some
contracts to buy or scll non-financial items. IFRS 9 containg a new classification and
measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which assels
are managed and their cash flow characteristics. It contains three principal classilication
categorics for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The
standard eliminates the existing [AS 39 calcgorics of held to maturity, loans and receivables
and available for sale.

Based on its preliminary asscssment, the company docs not believe that the new
classification requircments will have a material impact on its accounting for accounts
receivables, Touans, investments in debt securities und securities purchased under resale
agreements. [However, the company is still in the process of its assessment and the final
inipact is not vet known.

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss” model in TAS 39 with a forward-looking “expeeted eredit
loss” (ECL)Y model. This will require considerable judgement about how changes in
cconomic tactors allect ECLs, which will be determined on a probability-weighted basis.
The new unpairment model will apply to financial asscts measured at amortised cost or
I'VOCI, except for investments in equily instruments. Under IFRS 9, loss allowunces will
be measured on either ol the following bases:

- 1Z-month ECLs: these are 1:CLs that result from possible delault events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime ECLs: these arc ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life ot a inancial instrument,

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of a inancial asset at the reporting date
has increased significantly since initial recognition and 12-month ECL measurcment applics
if it has not. An entity may determine that a financial asset’s credit risk has not increased
significantly il the asset has low credit risk at the reporting date. However, lifetime 1CI.
measurcment always applies for short-term receivables without a significant financing
component.

The Group believes that impairment losses are likely to increase and become more volatile
for assets in the scope of IFRS 9 impairment model. However, the Group is still in the
process of determining the likely financial impact on its financial statements. IFRS 9 will
require extensive disclosures, in particular for credit risk and ECLs. The Group’s assessment
included an analysis to identify data gaps against current processes and the Group is in the
process of implementing the system and control changes that it belicves will be necessary
to capture the required data.

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 will generally be
applied retrospectively, except as follows:

- The Group will take advantage of the exemption allowing it not to restate comparative
information for prior periods with respect to classification and mcasurement as well as
impairment changes. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial instruments
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 will generally be recognized in retained earnings
and reserves as at January 1, 2018.

- The following assessments have to be made on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that exist at the date of initial application:

- The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

- The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets as
measured at FVTPL.

- The designation of certain investments in equity investments not held for trading as
at FVOCL
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New, revised and amended standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued):

e [FRS 16 Leases, which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which
distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating
leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting model that is similar to current
finance lease accounting. Entities will be required to bring all major leases on-balance sheet,
recognising new assets and liabilities. The on-balance sheet liability will attract interest; the
total lease expense will be higher in the early years of a lease even if a lease has fixed regular
cash rentals. Optional lessee exemption will apply to short- term leases and for low-value
items with value of US$5,000 or less.

Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice as the lessor will continue to classify
leases as finance and operating leases.

- Amendments to IAS 40, Transfers of Investment Property, effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, clarifies when an entity should transfer a
property asset to, or from, investment property. A transfer is made when and only when
there is an actual change in use — i.e. an asset meets or cease to meet the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.

The entity has a choice on transition to apply the prospective approach — i.e. apply the
amendments to transfers that occur after the date of initial application — and also reassess
the classification of property assets held at that date; or apply the amendments
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8, but only if it does not involve the use of hindsight.

The Group is assessing the impact that this amendment will have on its financial 2019
statements.

- Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 contain amendments to certain standards applicable to
the Group as follows:

. IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, effective retrospectively for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, has been amended to
clarify or state the following:

(i) A venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect to measure
its investments in an associate or joint venture at fair value through profit or
loss. This election can be made on an investment-by-investment basis.

(ii) A non-investment entity investor may elect to retain the fair value accounting
applied by an investment entity associate or investment entity joint venture to
its subsidiaries. This election can be made separately for each investment entity
associate or joint venture.

. IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration, effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, addresses how to
determine the transaction date when an entity recognises a non-monetary asset or
liability (e.g. non-refundable advance consideration in a foreign currency) before
recognising the related asset, expense or income. It is not applicable when an entity
measures the related asset, expense or income or initial recognition at fair value or at
the fair value of the consideration paid or received at the date of initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability.

An entity is not required to apply this interpretation to income taxes or insurance
contracts that it issues or reinsurance contracts held.

The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance
consideration. For transactions involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment
or receipt gives rise to a separate transaction date.

. IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments, is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. IFIC
23 clarifies the accounting treatment for income tax treatments that are yet to be
accepted by tax authorities, whilst aiming to enhance transparency.

IFRIC 23 is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under IAS 12.

An entity has to consider whether it is probable that the relevant authority will accept
each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that is used or plans to use in its income
tax filing.

If the entity concludes that it is probable that a particular tax treatment is accepted,
the entity has to determine taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits or tax rates consistently with the tax treatment included in its
income tax filings.

If the entity concludes that it is not probable that a particular tax treatment is accepted,
the entity has to use the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment
when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates. The decision should be based on which method provides better
predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty.

IFRIC 23 does not add any new disclosure requirements. However, it highlights an
entity shall determine whether it should disclose judgements made in the process of
applying its accounting policy to determine taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, in accordance with paragraph 122 of IAS
1 presentation of financial statements.

IFRIC 23 requires disclosure when it is probable that taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, paragraph 88 of IAS 12 should be applied to determine the
disclosure of a tax- related contingency.

The Group is assessing the impact that these new standards and amendments will have
on its financial statements, when they are adopted.

If facts and circumstances change, the entity is required to reassess the judgements
and estimates applied.

IFRIC 23 reinforces the need to comply with existing disclosure requirements
regarding:

- judgements made in the process of applying accounting policy to determine
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates;

- assumptions and other estimates used; and

- potential impact of uncertainties that are not reflected in the financial statements.

42. Subsequent events

@

(i)

The exchange rate of the Jamaica dollar at July 27, 2018 being the Bank of Jamaica weighted
average exchange rate of the Jamaica dollar was US$1 to J$133.3957, £1 to J$176.0537, Cdn$1
to J$103.6942, €1 to J$153.6409, and Cayman dollar 1 to J$162.7241, compared to US$1 to
J$125.3198, £1 to J$176.7955, Cdn$1 to J$96.6059, €1 to J$154.6148 and Cayman dollar 1 to
J$153.2132, at March 31, 2018.

OnJune 1, 2018 the Government of Barbados announced that it was suspending payments due on
debts owed to external commercial creditors. Post-announcement the price of the Government
of Barbados bonds declined by approximately 35% compared to its March 31, 2018 value. As
at March 31, 2018 the Bank held USD denominated investment in the Government of Barbados
bonds with a carrying value of $109,516,000 (2017: $121,702,000).

No adjustment has been made to the financial statements to this effect.



